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1.	 DEPARTMENT GENERAL INFORMATION 

PHYSICAL ADDRESS:    		  No. 7 Government Boulevard 
	 Building No 2

                                      		  Riverside Park,
	 Extension 2

                                          		 Mbombela
					     1200

POSTAL ADDRESS:  		  Private Bag X11291
                                  		  Mbombela
                                  		  1200

TELEPHONE NUMBER/S:  	 +27 13 766 2473
FAX NUMBER: 			   +27 13 766 2500
EMAIL ADDRESS:  		  info@mpg.gov.za
WEBSITE ADDRESS   : 		  www.mpumalanga.gov.za  
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2.	 LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS

AGSA Auditor-General South Africa

APP Annual Performance Plan

CDW Community Development Worker

COBIT Core Objectives of Information and Related Technologies

COGTA Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs

CRDP Comprehensive Rural Development Programme

DA Delivery Agreement 

DARDLEA Department of Agriculture, Rural Development, Land and 
Environmental Affairs

DCSR Department of Culture, Sport and Recreation

DCSSL Department of Community Safety, Security and Liaison

DG Director-General

DIRCO Department of International Relations and Co-operation

DHS Department of Human Settlements

DPME Department of Planning Monitoring and Evaluation

DPSA Department of Public Service and Administration

DPWRT Department of Public Works, Roads and Transport

DSD Department of Social Development

EEA Employment Equity Act

EMC Executive Management Committee

EXCO Executive Council

FSDM Frontline Service Delivery Monitoring

GEPF Government Employees Pension Fund

GPSSBC General Public Service Sector Bargaining Council

GSDM Gert Sibande District Municipality

GYO Gender, Youth and Older Persons

HOD Head of Department

HRD Human Resources Development

HRM Human Resource Management

IDP Integrated Development Plan

IFMS Integrated Financial Management System
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IMU Integrity Management Unit

IRPF International Relations Policy Framework

ISF Integrated Spatial Framework

M & E Monitoring and Evaluation

MANCOM Management Committee

MDCM Mpumalanga Development Co-ordinating Model

MEC Member of the Executive Council

MEGDP Mpumalanga Economic Growth and Development Path

MLO Media Liaison Officer

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

MPAC Mpumalanga Provincial AIDS Council

MPAT Management Performance Assessment Tool

NACH National Anti-Corruption Hotline

NDM Nkangala District Municipality

NDP National Development Plan

NSDP National Spatial Development Plan

OPSC Office of the Public Service Commission

OSW Office on the Status of Women

OVS Operation Vuka Sisebente

PCC President’s Co-ordinating Council

PCF Premier’s Co-ordinating Forum

PETWG Provincial Evaluation Technical Working Group

PFMA Public Finance Management Act

PGCF Provincial Government Communication Forum

PGITO Provincial Government Information & Technology Office 

PIACC Provincial International Affairs Co-ordinating Committee

PMC Provincial Management Committee

PMDMC Performance Management and Development Moderating 
Committee

PMDS Performance Management and Development System

POA Programme of Action

PPP Public Private Partnership

PPOA Provincial Programme of Action
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PSCBC Public Service Co-ordinating Bargaining Council

PSDF Provincial Spatial Development Plan

PSETA Public Sector Education and Training Authority

QPR Quarterly Performance Report

SALGA South African Local Government Association

SARS South African Revenue Services

SCM Supply Chain Management

SDF Spatial Development Framework

SITA State Information and Technology Agency

SMS Senior Management Services

SONA State of the Nation Address

SOPA State of the Province Address

SSA State Security Agency
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The Office of the Premier is pleased to present the 2015/16 Annual Report to the people 
of Mpumalanga and all our stakeholders. The report provides a detailed account of 
the work accomplished during the year under review. Through this Annual Report, the 
Office of the Premier is once more demonstrating its values of being accountable and 

transparent to the people it serves. 

During the execution of our plans we registered considerable levels of success as a result of 
effective and efficient implementation of government strategic policies that contribute to economic 
growth and improvement in the social condition of our people. Our accomplishments were, 
nonetheless realised under very difficult conditions characterised by a global economic slump, 
increased unemployment, severe drought, persistent and structural inequalities. Despite these 
challenges significant effort has been made to ensure that the targets we pronounced are attained. 
During the review period we have put great effort into integrating the planning and budgeting 
processes of the provincial and local government in our province, so that we all direct our efforts 
and resources towards realising our developmental vision. The integrated approach has seen us 
make serious strides in the delivery of infrastructure, which includes investment and installation of 
bulk infrastructure in different municipalities thereby improving water provisioning. 

We will continue to ensure that provincial policy and planning frameworks are aligned with 
national plans and priorities, and that local government’s Integrated Development Plans (IDP’s) 
are consistent with provincial growth and development strategies and reflect national priorities. 
One of the critical areas of focus was the work we began and continue to do to build an activist 
government which engages with communities on an on-going basis. The launch of Operation 
Vuka Sisebente in August 2015, demonstrates our commitment to listen and provide on time 

Foreword  by Premier
Mr David Mabuza 
Premier: Mpumalanga Province
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responses. Since the launch, the Office of the Premier has provided leadership in the roll-out of 
Operation Vuka Sisebente throughout all local municipalities. Through Operation Vuka Sisebent, 
our people will experience a different provincial government, which serves with pride and restores 
our people’s confidence. It will also facilitate efficient delivery of services as well as deepen public 
participation in government processes at ward level.  

In the year under review, we have put more effort into attracting international investment and 
opening business opportunities for our people. Our international engagements are beginning to 
yield positive results as we have placed some of our young graduates in countries like Russia and 
Italy to further their studies. It’s our view that through such partnerships our people will accumulate 
the necessary skills to grow the economy. These international partnerships are also aimed at 
opening new markets for goods and services coming from Mpumalanga. 

Going forward we will aggressively intensify our effort to attract international investors into the 
province and ensure that we also strengthen our relationship with local investors. The Office 
of the Premier continues to build strategic partnerships with industry operating in the province 
to ensure that opportunities for skills development for our young people, and their subsequent 
absorption into the job market, is realised. 

I take this opportunity to thank all the MECs, Mayors, Director-General and his team in the Office 
of the Premier, the Heads of Department for rolling up their sleeves to ensure that our people’s 
lives are improved through the provisioning of excellent services.

_________________ 
Mr DD Mabuza (MPL)
Premier: Mpumalanga Province 
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As they say, Rome was not built in one day. Therefore, as a country and as a Province, one day we will also 
overcome. Our commitment towards the elimination of poverty, unemployment and inequality will remain 
unwavering. For as long as our people are confronted by these stubborn challenges, we will never rest but 
continue with our endeavours to create a better life for all.

My word of appreciation goes to the Director General and her officials for doing everything in their power to 
ensure that Mpumalanga improves for the better. Their efforts won’t go unnoticed. 

MR DD MABUZA
PREMIER OF MPUMALANGA PROVINCE

Annual Report 2012-13 - Printers Proof - 23 August 2013.indd   13 2013/08/23   12:06 PM
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Report of the  
Accounting Officer

3.	 REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

Departmental receipts

Departmental receipts
2015/2016 2014/2015
Estimate Actual

Amount 
Collected

(Over)/Under 
Collection

Estimate Actual
Amount 
Collected

(Over)/Under 
Collection

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Tax Receipts
Casino taxes
Horse racing taxes
Liquor licences
Motor vehicle licences
Sale of goods and 
services other than 
capital assets

220 185 64 208 208 -

Transfers received
Fines, penalties and 
forfeits
Interest, dividends and 
rent on land

336 379 (169) 300 375 (75)

Sale of capital assets 215 333 (118) 222 66 156
Financial transactions in 
assets and liabilities

15 64 (49) 12 167 (155)

Total 786 961 (175) 742 816 (74)

The Office of the Premier collected total revenue of R961 000 against projected revenue estimates 
of R786 000. This resulted in over collection of revenue by an amount of R175 000 in the 2015/16 
Financial Year. The over collection was due to the sale of capital assets (Fleet).

MrThulani Mdakane 
Director-General: Office of the Premier 
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Programme Expenditure 
Programme 
Name

2015/2016 2014/2015
Final Appro-
priation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/ Under 
Expenditure 

Final
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under  
Expenditure 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Administration 124 284 124 043 241 99 580 98 398 1 182
Institutional 
Development

86 149 85 659 490 74 688 74 948 (260)

Policy and 
Governance

57 216 52 691 4 525 42 552 38 240 4 312

Total 267 649 262 393 5 256 216 820 211 586 5 234

The Office of the Premier spent an amount of R262 393 000 which is 98% of the adjusted budget 
of R267 649 000 in the 2015/16 Financial Year. The Office underspent by 2.8% which is 0.8% 
above the acceptable threshold of 2%. There were a total of 108 planned targets for the year 
under review and 84 of these planned targets were achieved. The underspending is due to the 
non-achievement of some of the planned targets such as the hosting of the ICT Indaba, the SMS 
summit and the slow implementation of the OVS Command Centre. 

Virements/roll overs 

•	 A total virement of R9 144 000 was effected by the Office of the Premier among its three 
programmes.

•	 A roll-over of R5 002 000 for goods and services was requested from the Provincial 
Treasury.

Reason for the virement 

Programme 1: Administration was projecting an over expenditure of R9 144 000 which is equivalent 
to 7.9%. Savings were identified under Programme 2: Institutional Development, and Programme 
3: Policy and Governance respectively.

Future Plans of the Office of the Premier

•	 Implement the Operation Vuka Sisebente Service Delivery Model across the Province
•	 Strengthen the role of the Mpumalanga Provincial Aids Council to address the incidence 

and prevalence of HIV/Aids in the Province
•	 Monitor the implementation of the recommendations of the report from the commission 

on the socio-economic conditions of farm dwellers. 
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•	 Facilitate a comprehensive assessment of the Efficiency and Effectiveness of 
Mpumalanga’s regional service delivery model. 

•	 Institutionalize the implementation of the Provincial M&E System;
•	 Institutionalize the Mpumalanga International Relations Framework as a basis for 

coordinating strategic partnerships and leveraging resources for development
•	 Mainstream the socio economic issues of target groups into government programmes 

and project planning the
•	 Establish and monitor functionality of the Youth Development War Room.
•	 Implement the Anti-Corruption Strategy and continue to utilize the computerized tracking 

and management of cases in an effort to curb corruption in the Public Sector;
•	 Develop and utilize ICT as a mechanism to improve administration and service delivery
•	 Implement the Provincial Communication Plan to stimulate public awareness on key 

government activities across the Province
•	 Perform internal audit services for five cluster departments and monitor implementation 

to ensure the realization of a clean audit outcomes

Public Private Partnerships

The Office of the Premier is currently not engaged in Public Private Partnerships.

Discontinued activities/ activities to be discontinued

•	 During the year under review, the Office of the Premier relinquished the function of the 
Rapid Implementation Unit. The management of contractors that was performed by this 
Unit, was transferred back to the mandated Department of Public Works, Roads and 
Transport, which will now be in a position to address bottlenecks.

•	 The Office of the Premier discontinued hosting the SMS Summit and ICT Indaba due to 
the cost curtailment measures currently in place.

New or proposed activities

•	 The Office of the Premier will facilitate the development of a cost-effective provincial 
service delivery model, including a comprehensive review of the current regional service 
delivery models, to further identify and eliminate overlaps, wastage, and duplications. 

•	 The Office of the Premier plans to boost current youth development programmes and 
mechanisms specifically aimed at dealing with the unsustainable predicament of youth, 
through the established Youth Development War Room situated in the Office of the 
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Premier. This will entail multi-stakeholder engagement and mobilization of resources to 
drive the implementation of the Youth Development Programme of Action. Furthermore, 
the Youth Development Office will work closely with all youth development agencies, 
development finance institutions, government departments, municipalities and the 
private sector to champion youth development initiatives. 

Supply Chain Management

No unsolicited bid proposals were received or concluded during the year under review.
•	 Procurement of goods and services is done in accordance with the threshold values 

prescribed by the National Treasury.
•	 Procurement delegations are implemented and monitored regularly.
•	 The invitation of competitive bids for threshold values above R500 000 is implemented 

however there were non compliance under procument which were raised by the Auditor 
General and are attended to by the Office of the Premier.

•	 The invitation of competitive bids for threshold values below R500 000 is implemented 
however there were procument that were conduncted without obtaining the required 
price quotations which were raised by the Auditor General and are attended to by the 
Office of the Premier.

•	 Deviations from normal procurement processes (procurement without inviting 
competitive bids) are justified and substantiated, approved by the Accounting Officer, 
recorded and reported to both the Provincial Treasury and the Auditor-General.

•	 Due diligence is exercised when checking the completeness of the SBD 4 forms, to 
ensure that service providers declare their interests and verify the ID numbers of the 
directors on the PERSAL system.

•	 The VAT registration status of suppliers is verified on the SARS Website to ensure that 
the status is active before any awards are made.

•	 Systems to ensure the proper safekeeping and management of contract records are in 
place and ensure that awards are made in accordance with the requirements of SCM 
legislation and prescripts.

•	 Implementation and monitoring of transaction checklists ensure compliance with SCM 
prescripts.



ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2015/2016 FINANCIAL YEAR VOTE 1:  OFFICE OF THE PREMIER MPUMALANGA PROVINCE 

18

Challenges experienced in SCM and how they were resolved

NO CHALLENGES ACTION TAKEN TO RESOLVE CHALLENGES

1 Deviations from inviting competitive bids were not 
recorded

A deviation register has been developed

2 Goods and services with a transaction value of 
more than R500 000 were not procured through 
competitive bidding processes

A compliance monitoring template was 
developed

3 The winning bidder was not published in the 
Government tender bulletin

Tenders awarded are published as such

4 Prospective supplier list not updated Supplier data base reviewed and updated

5 Limitation on adjustments of assets The safe keeping of all system reports has been 
added to the KPA’s of two officials within the 
Asset Management Unit

6 No disposal committee in place to deal with the 
disposal of moveable assets.

Disposal Committee has been appointed

Gifts and Donations received in kind from non-related parties
The Office of the Premier did not receive any gifts or donations.

Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury 
The Office of the Premier did not receive any exemptions or deviations from the National Treasury. 

Events after the reporting date
No events took place after the reporting period.

Other 
There are no material facts or circumstances, which may have an effect on the understanding of 
the financial state of affairs, not addressed elsewhere in this Report. 

Acknowledgement/s or Appreciation

The Office of the Premier acknowledges the role of relevant oversight institutions and particularly 
the respective committees of the Provincial Legislature and the Provincial Treasury, as well as its 
Audit Committee. The professional work ethic, support and commitment of the staff of the Office 
of the Premier are highly appreciated.
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Conclusion

I would like to take this opportunity to express my word of appreciation to all staff in the Office of 
the Premier for the work undertaken in the interests of better service delivery for South Africans 
in general and the citizens of Mpumalanga the Province in particular.

_________________ 
MR T MDAKANE
DIRECTOR-GENERAL: OFFICE OF THE PREMIER OF MPUMALANGA
DATE: 29 JULY 2016
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4.	 STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY FOR THE 
ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent. 

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as 
issued by National Treasury.

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the modified 
cash standard and the relevant frameworks and guidelines issued by the National Treasury.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and 
for the judgements made in this information.

The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal 
control that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability 
of the performance information, the human resources information and the annual financial 
statements.

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial 
statements.

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the 
human resources information and the financial affairs of the Office of the Premier for the Financial 
Year ended 31 March 2016.

Yours faithfully 

___________________ 
MR. T MDAKANE
DIRECTOR-GENERAL: OFFICE OF THE PREMIER OF MPUMALANGA
DATE: 29 July 2016
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5.	 STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

1.1.	 Vision 

A strategic centre of excellence for effective and efficient governance.

1.2.	 Mission

Provide strategic direction and support evidence based decision making through research, 
monitoring and evaluation, integrated planning, coordination of Government programmes and 
institutional development.

1.3.	 Values

The Office of the Premier is guided in executing its mandate by the following values:

•	 Integrity

•	 Professionalism

•	 Competence

•	 Innovation

•	 Punctuality

•	 Accountability

•	 Responsiveness

•	 Diligence 



ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2015/2016 FINANCIAL YEAR VOTE 1:  OFFICE OF THE PREMIER MPUMALANGA PROVINCE 

22

6.	 LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

There have been no significant changes to the Office of the Premier’s legislative mandates.

1.1.	 Constitutional Mandates

The Office of the Premier derives its constitutional mandates primarily from the provisions of the 
Constitution, 1996. Section 125(2) of the Constitution, 1996, mandates the Office of the Premier 
to, among others:
•	 Implement Provincial legislation in the Province;
•	 Implement all National legislation within the functional areas of Schedules 4 and 5;
•	 Administer in the Province, National legislation outside the functional areas of Schedules 

4 and 5;
•	 Develop and implement Provincial policies; and
•	 Co-ordinate the functions of the Provincial Administration.

1.2.	 Legislative Mandates

There have been no significant changes to the Office of the Premier’s legislative mandates. 
There is sufficient capacity within the Office of the Premier to ensure compliance with all legal 
responsibilities that relate to its mandate. 

The Office of the Premier derives its legislative mandates primarily from the following pieces of 
legislation: 

•	 Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000 (Act No. 2 of 2000);

	 This Act gives effect to the Constitutional right of access to any information held by Government 
and which is required for the exercise or protection of any rights;

•	  Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000 (Act No. 3 of 2000); 

	 This Act gives effect to the right to administrative action that is lawful, non-discriminatory and 
procedurally reasonable and fair;

•	  Promotion of Equality and Prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act, 2000 (Act No. 4 of 
2000); 

	 This Act gives effect to section 9 of the Constitution so as to prevent and prohibit unfair 
discrimination and harassment and to promote equality and eliminate unfair discrimination;
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•	  Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act, 2005 (Act No. 13 of 2005); 

	 This Act establishes a framework for the National Government, Provincial Government and 
Local Government to promote and facilitate intergovernmental relations and also provides for 
mechanisms and procedures to facilitate the settlement of intergovernmental disputes;

•	 Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999);

	 This Act regulates financial management in the National Government and Provincial 
Governments in order to ensure that all Government revenue, expenditure, assets and 
liabilities are managed efficiently and effectively;

•	 Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 2000 (Act No. 5 of 2000);

	 This Act gives effect to section 217(3) of the Constitution by providing a framework for the 
implementation of Government’s procurement policy as contemplated in section 217(2) of the 
Constitution; 

•	 Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003 (Act No. 53 of 2003);

	 This Act establishes a legislative framework for the promotion of Black Economic Empowerment;

•	 Division of Revenue Act (annually);

	 To annually provide for the equitable division of revenue raised among the National, Provincial 
and Local Spheres of Government; 

•	 Public Service Act, 1994 (Proclamation No. 103 of 1994);

	 This Act provides for the organisation and administration of the Public Service of the Republic 
of South Africa;

•	  Labour Relations Act, 1995 (Act No. 66 of 1995); 

	 This Act gives effect to section 27 of the Constitution and seeks to regulate the organisational 
rights of trade unions and to promote and facilitate collective bargaining;

•	  Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997 (Act No. 75 of 1997);

	 This Act gives effect to the right to fair labour practices referred to in section 23(1) of the 
Constitution;

•	  Employment Equity Act, 1998 (Act No. 55 of 1998);

	 This Act provides for equity in all levels and categories of employment;

•	  Protected Disclosures Act, 2000 (Act No. 26 of 2000);

	 This Act provides for procedures in terms of which employees in both the private and the public 
sector may disclose information regarding unlawful or irregular conduct to their employers and 
also provides for the protection of such employees;
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•	  Prevention and Combating of Corrupt Activities Act, 2004 (Act No. 12 of 2004); 

	 This Act provides for the strengthening of measures to prevent and combat corruption and 
corrupt activities;

•	  State Information Technology Agency Act, 1998 (Act No. 88 of 1998);

	 This Act establishes a company responsible for the provision of information technology services 
to the Public Administration;

•	  Public Administration Management Act, 2014 (Act No. 11 of 2014)(once it is put into 
operation)

	 This Act seeks to promote the basic values and principles governing the public administration 
referred to in section 195(1) of the Constitution.

1.3.	 Policy Mandates

The Office of the Premier, in fulfilling its role within the Provincial Government, takes into account 
various National and Provincial policy mandates, in particular the following: 

•	 The annual State of the Nation Address (SONA) - the Office of the Premier ensures 
implementation and monitoring of the policy direction stated in the SONA;

•	 The annual State of the Province Address (SOPA) - the Office of the Premier ensures 
implementation and monitoring of SOPA;

•	 The annual Premier’s Budget and Policy Speech;

•	 The National and the Provincial Medium Term Strategic Framework (MTSF) 2014-2019 
Priorities – the Office of the Premier ensures implementation and monitoring of MTSF;

•	 The National Strategic Framework of the Department for Women, Children and People 
with Disabilities;

•	 Specific National Policy Frameworks on Gender and Women’s Empowerment, Disability and 
Children;

•	 National Strategic Plan (NSP) for HIV and AIDS, TB and STIs 2012–2016;

•	 The White Paper on the Transformation of the Public Service (1995);

•	 The White Paper on Public Service Training and Education (1997);

•	 The White Paper on a New Employment Policy for the Public Service (1997);

•	 The National Youth Policy (2015-2020) of the National Youth Development Agency;

•	 Policy Frameworks of the National Department of Public Service and Administration on 
Gender Equality, Disability and Youth in the Public Service;
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•	 White Paper on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities, 2016;

•	 National Development Plan (2012);

•	 Mpumalanga Vision 2030 Strategic Implementation Framework (2013-2030)

•	 The Policy Framework for Government Wide Monitoring and Evaluation (2007);

•	 The Framework for Strategic Plans and Annual Performance Plans (2010);

•	 The National Treasury Framework for Managing Programme Performance Information 
(2007);

•	 The Green Paper on National Performance Management (2009);

•	 The National Evaluation Policy Framework (2011).
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7.	 ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
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DIRECTOR-GENERAL 
mr T Mdakane
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DIRECTOR: 
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VACANT

CHIEF DIRECTOR: 
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VACANT
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COMMUNICATION
MR. M SITHOLE 

(ACTING)
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8.	 ENTITIES REPORTING TO THE HONOURABLE PREMIER

There are no entities reporting to the Office of the Premier.
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Premier David Mabuza greets women during the Women’s Economic Development Summit 
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1.	 AUDITOR-GENERAL’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The AGSA currently performs certain audit procedures on the performance information to provide 
reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance 
against predetermined objectives is included in the report to management, with material findings 
being reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on other legal and 
regulatory requirements section of the auditor’s report.

Refer to page 149 of the Report of the Auditor-General, published as Part E: Financial Information.

2.	 OVERVIEW OF DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE

2.1	 Service Delivery Environment

The Service Delivery Environment of the Office of the Premier is guided by policy frameworks and 
legislation such as the PFMA, National Strategic Outcomes 11 and 12 and the Mpumalanga Vision 
2030 Strategic Implementation Framework, which operationalises the National Development Plan 
in the Province. In addition, other policy mandates such as the White Paper on Transforming Public 
Service Delivery 1997 (Batho Pele) the Batho Pele Revitalization Strategy and the Public Service 
Regulations, 2001 are adhered to.

The core deliverables of the Office of the Premier include executing the following Programmes:

•	 Integrated planning;
•	 Monitoring and Evaluation;
•	 Institutional Transformation; and 
•	 Strengthening the co-ordination of prioritised Provincial Programmes.

2.2	 Service Delivery Improvement Plan

The Office has completed a service delivery improvement plan. The tables below highlight the main 
services and standards enumerated in the SDIP and the achievements to date.
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Main services and standards
Main services Beneficiaries Current/actual  

standard of 
service

Desired 
standard of 

service

Actual 
achievement

Effective and efficient 
implementation 
of performance 
management system 
in the Mpumalanga 
Provincial Government 

Sector Departments and 
the Office of the Premier 
Provincial Departmental 
PMDS Co-ordinators

11 Departments 
and the Office 
of the Premier 
performance 
management 
systems 
statistics 
consolidated 
quarterly

Consolidate 
statistics 
quarterly on 11 
Departments 
and the Office 
of the Premier 
performance 
management 
systems

11 Departments 
and the Office 
of the Premier 
performance 
management 
systems statistics 
consolidated 
quarterly

Co-ordinate the 
monitoring and 
evaluation of the 
performance of 
Provincial Government 
structures and its 
strategic partnerships 
for public service 
delivery, social 
development and 
economic growth

Sector Departments
PMC / EXCO

11 Departments 
and the Office 
of the Premier 
performance 
reports 
consolidated 
quarterly

11 Departments 
and the Office 
of the Premier 
performance 
reports 
commented on 
quarterly

11 Departments 
and the Office 
of the Premier 
performance 
reports 
consolidated 
quarterly

Batho Pele arrangements with beneficiaries (Consultation, access etc.)
Current/actual arrangements Desired arrangements Actual achievements

Co-ordinate, workshop and monitor 
11 Departments and the Office of the 
Premier, and 12 Municipalities on Batho 
Pele Change Management Engagement 
Programme

Capacitate 11 Departments 
and the Office of the Premier, 
and 12 Municipalities on Batho 
Pele Change Management 
Engagement Programme

11 Departments and the 
Office of the Premier, and 12 
Municipalities were capacitated 
on Batho Pele Change 
Management Engagement 
Programme

Co-ordinate and review Service 
Standards in 11 Departments and 
the Office of the Premier and 12 
Municipalities 

Credible Service Standards for 
11 Departments and the Office of 
the Premier and 12 Municipalities  

Co-ordinated and reviewed 
service standards in 11 
Departments and the Office 
of the Premier and 12 
municipalities

Co-ordinate the submission of quarterly 
reports on the Implementation of SDIPs 
(2015-2018) for 11 Departments and 
OTP

Consolidate 11 Departments 
and the Office of the Premier 
quarterly reports on the 
implementation of SDIPs (2015 
– 2018)

11 Departments and the 
Office of the Premier quarterly 
reports consolidated on the 
implementation of SDIPs (2015 
– 2018)
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Service delivery information tool
Current/actual information tools Desired information tools Actual achievements
Reports Reports Khaedu deployment reports

Annual Report and APSD report

Press release Press release EXCO Statements

Complaints mechanism
Current/actual complaints 
mechanism

Desired complaints 
mechanism

Actual achievements

Complaints Mechanism Align complaints policy with 
the National complaints 
mechanism Policy and 
establishment of the 
Departmental Complaints 
Committee

Consulted with DPSA

2.3	 Organisational environment 

The core mandate of the Office of the Premier is to co-ordinate Government in the Province, at 
both Provincial and Municipal level. Thus the starting point in assessing the Office of the Premier’s 
effectiveness is to determine how competent it was to co-ordinate intergovernmental structures. In 
this regard, it must be mentioned that the Office of the Premier co-ordinated 16 EXCO meetings, 
2 EXCO Makgotla, 2 PMC Makgotla, 4 sittings of the PCF as well as 8 Budget and Finance 
Committee meetings.

Positive results stemming from the functionality of intergovernmental structures resulted in key 
decisions being taken to improve the lives of communities. For example the State machinery was 
seen conducting performance monitoring deliberately targeting service delivery sites.

Important recommendations were made for the PMC and PCF technical Committees to advise 
EXCO and PCF on the most appropriate course of action to be taken so as to improve Government’s 
intervention in bettering the lives of the citizens of the Province.  

Being an institution that operates within a political environment, the Office of the Premier cannot 
avoid scrutiny in as far as its performance with regards to compliance to policy dictates on 
issues of target groups. The Office of the Premier encountered challenges in meeting the target 
of achieving 50 percent representation of women in SMS positions and that of completing and 
finalising the investigation of 100% of alleged fraud and corruption cases within 90 days.
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2.4	 Key policy developments and legislative changes

There were no policy developments or legislative changes that affected the operations of the 
Office of the Premier during the period under review.

3.	 STRATEGIC OUTCOME ORIENTED GOALS

The Office of the Premier is directly responsible for the implementation of Outcomes 11 and 12 
namely:

Outcome 11: Creating a better South Africa and contributing to a better and safer Africa in a 
better World.

Presented in the table below is the 2015/16 target for this outcome: 

SUB-OUTCOMES KEY ACTIVITIES
A sustainable, developed and economically integrated 
Africa

International partnerships monitored in line with Provincial 
priorities 

Outcome 12: An efficient, effective and development oriented public service and an empowered, 
fair and inclusive citizenship.

Presented in the table below are the 2015/16 targets for this outcome:

SUB-OUTCOMES KEY ACTIVITIES
A stable political-administrative interface Finalise all disciplinary processes within 90 days

Co-ordinate the recruitment process for vacant HOD 
positions in all Departments 

Mainstream target groups into Government Programmes 
and Projects

Increased responsiveness of public servants and 
accountability to citizens

Co-ordinate the development and review of Service 
Standards in all Departments and Municipalities

Monitor the implementation of site improvement plans at 
12 frontline service delivery sites

Visit and assess 16 frontline service delivery sites and 
facilitate the development of improvement plans.

Roll-out MPAT cycle 1.5 with 11 Provincial Departments 
and the Office of the Premier and facilitate the development 
of improvement plans
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SUB-OUTCOMES KEY ACTIVITIES
Improved inter-departmental co-ordination Provide technical support and advice on macro policies to 

Cluster Committees

Improved mechanisms to promote ethical behaviour 
in the public service

100% financial disclosures for HODs and SMS members 
electronically submitted within the prescribed period

Anti-Corruption Awareness Campaigns on Anti-Corruption 
Strategy and National Whistleblowing Policy conducted in 
4 Departments and to citizens in 3 District Municipalities

100 % of all received and reported cases of alleged fraud 
and corruption concluded

Vetting of officials in prioritized offices 
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4.	 PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME

4.1	 Programme 1: Administration

Purpose of the Programme

The Programme is responsible for performing appropriate and effective co-ordinating and 
monitoring functions as they relate to administrative and strategic matters, both within the Office 
of the Premier and across the Provincial Government.

Programme 1 consists of the following Sub-Programmes:

•	 Premier Support;

•	 Director-General Support;

•	 Executive Council Support; and

•	 Financial Management.

Programme 1 is mainly responsible for the following strategic objectives:

•	 Provide strategic direction and leadership to 11 Provincial Departments, 21 Municipalities, as 
well as the Office of the Premier by 2020;

•	 Create a safe environment for service delivery through a centralized security management 
system in the 11 Provincial Departments as well as the Office of the Premier by 2020;

•	 Improve the coordination and implementation of Executive Council decisions within the 11 
Provincial Departments and 21 Municipalities as well as the Office of the Premier by 2020;

•	 Ensure compliance with the planning and reporting framework by the Office of the Premier 
Programmes by 2020.
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Strategic objectives, performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

Programme 1: Administration is key to achieving the Office of the Premier’s strategic objective of 
providing strategic direction and leadership to 11 Provincial Departments, 21 Municipalities, 
as well as within the Office of the Premier.  

In this regard the Programme was able to co-ordinate intergovernmental structures such as co-
ordinating 14 PMC meetings to support 16 EXCO meetings, 2 PMC Makgotla and to support and 
provide technical backup to the 2 EXCO Makgotla. 

By creating a safe environment for service delivery through a centralized security 
management system in the 11 Provincial Departments as well as the Office of the Premier, 
the Office of the Premier was able to monitor the security Management function in the 11 Provincial 
Government Departments. 
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Reasons for all deviations

Premiers Support

•	 Five sector fora (forestry, agriculture, business sector, tourism and manufacturing and 
engineering) could not be established due to the EA’s diary constraints.

Office of the Director-General

•	 One PMC Lekgotla could not be held due to the unavailability of key participants due to 
MINMEC meetings and preparations to appear before the respective Portfolio Committees.

Forensic and Integrity Management

•	 100% of alleged fraud and corruption cases investigated and finalised in 90 days: Target could 
not be reached due to the deployment of the majority of resources to the priority of clearing 
the backlog of cases.

•	 100% reduction of backlog on the investigation of alleged fraud and corruption. Target could 
not be achieved due to the complexity of cases which resulted in delays in the finalisation of 
such cases.

•	 100% calls from Presidential Hotline could not be resolved due to Municipalities’ failure to 
submit reports on time and thus the low percentage. Certain Departments such as Health do 
not have a dedicated PLO to deal with the Presidential Hotline.

•	 Draft Provincial Anti-Corruption Strategy not yet submitted to the Executive Council for 
approval.

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

Premiers Support

•	 The target has been rolled over to the 2016/17 Financial Year

Office of the Director-General

•	 Manage the calendar of scheduled meetings from various intergovernmental structures to 
avoid clashes.
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Forensic and Integrity Management

•	 Accelerate the finalisation of the backlog cases to focus on new cases as they are being 
reported.

•	 Increase human capacity to deal with the backlog cases.

•	 IMU to take matter up during Technical PCF with all Municipal Managers. This issue will also 
be addressed during PMC. 

•	 Draft Provincial Anti-Corruption Strategy will be presented to the EXCO Committees and 
EXCO in the first Quarter of the next Financial Year.

Sub-programme expenditure 
Sub-  
Programme 
Name

2015/2016 2014/2015
Final  
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Premier Support 17 591 17 553 38 12 822 12 736 86
Executive  
Council 

5 860 5 816 44 5 094 5 052 42

Director General 
Support

69 875 69 731 144 44 046 43 330 716

Financial  
Management

30 958 30 943 15 37 618 37 280 338

Total 124 284 124 043 241 99 580 98 398 1 182

The programme spent an amount of R124 043  000 or 99% of its final appropriation of  
R124 284  000 for the 2015/16 Financial Year. The Programme under spent by R241  000 or 
1.0%. There were 30 planned targets for the year under review under this programme and the 
programme managed to achieve 24 targets, which represents an achievement of 80%.
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4.2 Programme 2: Institutional Development

Purpose of the Programme

To provide institutional development services, advice, strategic support, co-ordination and 
development of policies to ensure operational efficiency, alignment and corporate compliance 
with a view to improve the capacity of the Mpumalanga Provincial Government to deliver effective 
and efficient services.

The Programme consists of the following five sub-programmes

•	 Strategic Human Resource

•	 Public Service Transformation and Service Delivery Improvement;

•	 Information Communication Technology;

•	 Legal Advisory Services; and

•	 Government Communication and Information Services.

The Programme is guided by the following strategic objectives:

•	 Strengthens the organisational performance in terms of business processes;

•	 Co-ordinates the implementation of human resource programmes in the 11 Provincial 
Departments as well as the Office of the Premier; 

•	 Co-ordinates the provision of legal advisory services in the 11 Provincial Departments as well 
as the Office of the Premier;

•	 Co-ordinates strategic ICT programmes and projects within the 11 Provincial Departments as 
well as the Office of the Premier;
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Strategic objectives, performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

The Programme achieved the strategic objective of strengthening the organisational 
performance in terms of business processes, by providing support to Departments in terms of 
ICT related services and projects. 

Twenty Seven (27) organograms were developed and the compilation of seventy (70) job 
descriptions was facilitated.

In a bid to co-ordinate the implementation of human resource programmes in Provincial 
Departments, the Office of the Premier convened 4 Labour Relations Fora and presided over 
16 disciplinary hearings. Through its Transversal HR Unit the Office of the Premier assisted 
Departments to review 5 Human Resources frameworks.

The strategic objective of co-ordinating the provision of legal advisory services in the 
Provincial Departments, as well as the Office of the Premier, was also achieved. This is 
informed by among others, the handling of 115 requests for memoranda, reports, letters and other 
documents with a legal bearing which were timeously drafted for clients. Nine (9) legal opinions 
were drafted and submitted to clients.

In addition, the Office of the Premier, through its Legal Advisory Services Unit, held 232 formal 
meetings with, inter alia, the Premier, MECs, the DG, DDGs, HODs, Legal Officers, etc. during 
which meetings, urgent legal advice and assistance was provided.
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Reasons for all deviations

Internal Human Resources Management

•	 Prolonged sick leave, maternity and non-compliance from both officials and managers, to the 
relevant prescripts.

Organisational Design & Job Evaluation

•	 The report on standardised Job descriptions for shared secretary services has not been 

presented to PMC for approval due to other PMC agenda priorities.

Public Service Transformation and Service Delivery Improvement

•	 The Provincial Senior Management Service Summit was discontinued due to cost curtailment 
measures currently in place

Chief Directorate Communication

•	 Marketing Strategy, as part of the rebranding and repositioning of the Province, was not 
developed due to lack of leadership within the unit

Corporate Communications Services

•	 2 Internal newsletters were not published due to human resources capacity constraints.

Community Services and Research

•	 The outreach programme schedule is guided by the programme of the EXCO.

Office of the Provincial Government Information Technology Office

•	 Coordination of the ICT Indaba as part of the roll-out of the centralised co-ordination of 
Information Communication and Technology for Mpumalanga Province was cancelled due to 
cost curtailment measures currently in place.

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

Internal Human Resources Management

•	 Officials to sign Performance Assessments immediately when they return from leave. One 
case of dispute has been referred to labour relations to address non-compliance.
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Organisational Design & Job Evaluation

•	 The report on standardised Job descriptions for shared secretary services will be presented at 
the next PMC sitting for approval.

Public Service Transformation and Service Delivery Improvement

•	 The activity has been discontinued.

Chief Directorate Communication

•	 Acting Chief Director was appointed towards the end of the Financial year 2015/16, however, 
filling in of critical vacant funded posts will be prioritised in the next financial year 2016/17.

Corporate Communications services

•	 Acting Chief Director: Communication has been appointed to assist in the Unit.

Community Services and Research

•	 Align the outreach programme schedule with the programme of the EXCO.

Office of the Provincial Government Information Technology Office

•	 The ICT roll out plan has been developed and MEGA has been approached to support with the 
process of ICT centralisation in the next Financial Year (2016/17)

Linking performance with budgets

Sub-programme expenditure

Sub-  
Programme 
Name

2015/2016 2014/2015
Final  
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/
Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Strategic Human 
Resource

38 716 38 347 369 32 585 32 990 (405)

Information 
Communication

9 865 9 817 48 2 350 2 301 49

Legal Services 3 392 3 378 14 3 123 3 114 9
Communication 
Services

31 161 31 108 53 34 797 34 713 84

Programme Support 2 324 2 318 6 1 833 1 830 3
Total 85 458 84 968 490 74 688 74 948 (260)

The Programme spent an amount of R84 968 000 or 99% of its final appropriation of R85 458 000 000 
for the 2015/16 financial year. The Programme under spent by R490 000 or 1.0%. There were 38 
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planned targets for the year under review under this Programme and the Programme achieved 
32, which represents an achievement rate of 84.2%.
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4.3	 Programme 3: Policy and Governance

Purpose of the Programme

The programme is responsible for providing informed macro policy advice, co-ordination and 
monitoring of the following key focus areas in the Provincial Government: 

•	 Provincial Planning;

•	 Monitoring of Implementation of Provincial Programmes;

•	 Mainstreaming of gender, youth and older persons issues;

•	 Regional and International co-operation; 

•	 Research and information management; and 

•	 Advisory services to the Premier, EXCO committees, EXCO and MPAC.

The Programme consists of the following sub-programmes:

•	 Special Programmes;

•	 Intergovernmental Relations; 

•	 Provincial Policy Management; and

•	 Monitoring and Evaluation.

Key to the mandate of Programme 3 are the following strategic objectives:

•	 Strengthen integrated planning and policy development in the 11 Provincial Departments, 3 
District Municipalities as well as the Office of the Premier.

•	 Monitor and evaluate the effectiveness and impact of Government Programmes within the 11 
Provincial Departments as well as the Office of the Premier.

•	 Strengthen protocol, regional and international co-operation by 2020.

Strategic objectives, performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

This Programme is the custodian of Outcome 11, and as such developed a strategic objective 
on Co-ordinating the Province’s contribution to creating a better and safer Africa and in a 
better World. 
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To achieve the strategic objective of Monitoring and Evaluating the effectiveness and impact 
of Government Programmes, the Office of the Premier, through its M&E Unit, conducted 16 
FSDM visits to service delivery sites around the Province, and supported the development of 
improvement plans for frontline service.  

With regard to its contribution to the improvement of service delivery at a community level the 
Programme supported the DPME’s pilot project on Citizens Based Monitoring in Mbombela 
Municipality focusing on Kabokweni, wherein a survey was conducted in 11 wards and four sector 
Departments directly dealing with service delivery to communities.

The Cluster Management Unit in the Office of the Premier monitored the implementation of EXCO 
resolutions for Makgotla held during the second and fourth quarter of the year under review.

The Special Programmes Unit continued to ensure that the lives of women, youth and older persons 
are improved.  Monitoring of the mainstreaming of Gender, Youth and Older person’s issues by all 
Provincial Departments is one of the activities this Unit under takes to ensure the improvement of 
the lives of target groups. This was coupled with the development of the Programme of Action for 
Women, Youth and Older Persons and the Unit also monitored the implementation thereof.

To Strengthen Integrated planning and policy development by Provincial Departments and 
District Municipalities as well as the Office of the Premier, the Programme renders support 
services to the EXCO Outreach programme and strengthens and maintains a central hub of 
strategic information for credible planning and decision making.  

Plans of Departments and IDPs of Municipalities were assessed to determine and ensure that 
they are in line with the macro policies and socio economic development priorities of the Province.  

Through the MPAC secretariat unit, secretariat and technical support was provided to Provincial, 
District and Local  AIDS Councils. It also co-ordinated capacity building programmes for the 
Councils’ members and secretariats.  The Programme was also able to monitor the implementation 
of the Provincial Strategic Plan for HIV and AIDS, STIs and TB (2012-2016). 

The roll-out of MDCM/OVS is also one of the defining activities placed under this Unit during the 
year under review.
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Reasons for all deviations

Special Programmes

•	 The Provincial Youth Policy Framework was not developed due to the fact that the National 
Policy was being reviewed and the Province had to participate in the National Consultations.

•	 International Women’s Day was not coordinated due to Management’s decision to cancel the 
event.

•	 Older person’s dialogue with the Premier was not co-ordinated due to the tight schedule of the 
Premier.

•	 Implementation of Resolutions on Premier’s Dialogue with Older Persons not monitored.

International Relations

•	 Facilitation of the approval of the IR Framework for the Financial Year 2015/16 and briefing 
sessions/workshops to institutionalise IR Framework were not conducted since there were no 
personnel in the Unit. 

•	 Non-approval of the Provincial International Relations Framework for 2015/16 Financial Year 
has resulted in non-achievement of the target on assessments of the impact of the international 
partnerships.

Monitoring and Evaluation

•	 M&E IT System tender was not achieved due to prioritisation of the establishment of the OVS 
Command Centre and its planned IT system.

•	 Provincial Evaluation Technical Working Group meetings were not held due to delays in 
appointment of service provider to conduct evaluations. This resulted in the PETWG not being 
convened to provide technical guidance to the Office of the Premier.

Research and Strategic Information Management System

•	 Monitoring of the implementation of the Provincial Research Policy Framework could not be 
conducted due to delays in the approval of the Provincial Research Policy Framework.

Cluster Management

•	 PPOA was not approved by EXCO due to delays in the approval of APPs of Provincial 
Departments.
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•	 Three reports on monitoring of EXCO Makgotla resolutions were not produced as planned. 
The target is dependent on the convening of EXCO Makgotla, whilst only two were convened.

Mpumalanga Provincial AIDS Council Secretariat

•	 MPAC meetings were not held as planned. The meeting scheduled for the third quarter was 
postponed due to unavailability of key stakeholders.

•	 All four (4) planned ZAZI workshop/campaign not conducted due to non-suitable bidder among 
the applicants bidders.

Strategies to overcome areas of under performance

Special Programmes

•	 The Provincial Youth Policy Framework will be developed after development of the National 
Youth Policy Framework has been finalised.

•	 International Women’s Day event will be co-ordinated in the 2016/17 Financial Year.

•	 The Unit is under staffed and there was no official dedicated to monitor Implementation of 
Resolutions on Premier’s Dialogue with Older Persons due to prolonged sick leave.

International Relations

•	 There was no personnel to perform the International Relations function, however, this will be 
priorities to form part of the filling of critical posts in 2016/17 financial

Monitoring and Evaluation

•	 The M&E IT system specifications and guidelines will be incorporated into the OVS command 
centre in 2016/17 financial year 

•	 The implementation of the Provincial Evaluation Plan will be prioritised in the 2016/17 Financial 
Year.

Research and Strategic Information Management System

•	 The Provincial Research Policy Framework was approved at the end of the 2015/16 Financial 
Year and will therefore be implemented in the 2016/17 Financial Year.
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Cluster Management

•	 PPOA was approved by the EXCO in the Second Quarter of 2015/16 Financial Year. Approval 
of PPOA will be prioritised in the First Quarter of 2016/17 Financial Year.

•	 Four quarterly reports on 2016/17 PPOA will be produced in the 2016/17 Financial Year.

Mpumalanga Provincial AIDS Council Secretariat

•	 The mobilisation of stakeholders for quarterly MPAC meetings will be done in advance. 

•	 Tender processes for the service provider will be prioritised in the 2016/17 financial year.

Linking performance with budgets

Sub-programme expenditure

Sub- Pro-
gramme Name

2015/2016 2014/2015
Final
Appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Special Programmes 8 972 8 894 78 8 542 4 733 3 809
Intergovernmental 
Relation

6 017 5 995 22 4 716 4 680 36

Provincial Policy and 
Management

39 673 35 415 4 258 27 079 26 916 163

Programme Support 2 554 2 387 167 2 215 1 911 304
Total 57 216 52 691 4 525 42 552 38 240 4 312

The Programme spent an amount of R52 691  000 which is 92% of its final appropriation of 
R57 216 000 for the 2015/16 Financial Year. The Programme under spent by R4 525 000 which 
is 8.0% of its total budget. There were 40 planned targets for the year under review under this 
Programme and the Programme achieved 28, which represents an achievement rate of 70%.

5.	 TRANSFER PAYMENTS

5.1.	 Transfer payments to public entities 
The Office of the Premier did not make any transfer payments to public entities.

5.2.	 Transfer payments to all organisations other than public entities
The Office of the Premier did not make any transfer payments to organisations other than public 
entities.
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6.	 CONDITIONAL GRANTS

6.1. Conditional grants and earmarked funds paid

The Office of the Premier did not pay conditional grants during the year under review.

6.2. Conditional grants and earmarked funds received

An additional amount of R10 million was allocated to cover costs related to the roll out of Operation 
Vuka Sisebente programme.

7.	 DONOR FUNDS

Donor Funds Received

The Office of the Premier recieved donations to an amount of R691 000, to be utilized under the 
Premier’s discretionary bursary fund. 

8.	 CAPITAL INVESTMENT

Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan

Progress made on implementing the capital, investment and asset management plan

The asset management plan was fully implemented by the Office of the Premier.

The Office of the Premier does not have any infrastructure projects that are currently in progress.

Plans to close down or down-grade any current facilities

There are no plans to close down or down grade any current facilities by the Office of the Premier.

Progress made on the maintenance of infrastructure

The Office of the Premier does not have any infrastructure to maintain.

Developments relating to the above that are expected to impact on the Department’s 
current expenditure

None. 
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Measures taken to ensure that the Department’s asset register remained up-to-date during 
the period under review

The Office of the Premier ensures that monthly reconciliation is done quarterly through BAS and 
Logis as well as asset verification.

The current state of the Department’s capital assets, for example what percentage is in 
good, fair or bad condition.

Some assets in the Office of the Premier were in a good (100%) condition.

Major maintenance projects that have been undertaken during the period under review

No major maintenance projects were undertaken for the period under review.

Progress made in addressing the maintenance backlog during the period under review, for 
example, has the backlog grown or become smaller?  Is the rate of progress according to 
plan? If not why not, and what measures were taken to keep on track

No major maintenance projects were undertaken for the period under review in the Office of the 
Premier.

Infrastructure 
projects

2015/2016 2014/2015
Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

Final 
Appropriation

R’000

Actual 
Expenditure

(Over)/Under 
Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
 New and 
replacement assets 

12 401 12 372 29 1 610 802 808

Existing 
infrastructure assets 

-	Upgrades and 
additions

-	Rehabilitation, 
renovations and 
refurbishments

-	Maintenance 
and repairs

Infrastructure 
transfer 

-	 Current
-	 Capital

Total 12 401 12 372 29 1 610 802 802
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PART C:  
GOVERNANCE
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Premier David Mabuza assessing the progress made through Operation Vuka Sisebente.
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1.	 INTRODUCTION

The Office of the Premier acknowledges and is committed to good governance, thus the Premier 
and senior management actively participate and ensure that they co-operate with all governance 
structures to enhance good governance.

The Office also provides support where needed in the fight against fraud and corruption, by 
means of prescribed exercises like the review of risk management initiatives and tools.

2.	 RISK MANAGEMENT

The Office of the Premier has a Risk Management Unit established in terms of Section 38(1)(a)(i) 
of the PFMA. The function is under the custodianship of the Office of the Chief Financial Officer. A 
Risk Management Policy and Strategy has been developed and approved to ensure an enabling 
environment for managing risks.

Risk Assessments, both Strategic and Operational, are conducted regularly in accordance with 
Treasury Regulations 3.2.1. This helps the Office of the Premier to prioritise the most important 
risks and manage them according to its capacity.

The Accounting Officer has appointed a Risk Management Committee to assist the Office of the 
Premier to discharge its responsibilities for risk management. The Risk Management Committee 
is chaired by an external member contracted for a period of 3 years. 

The Audit Committee provides oversight of the risk management function in the Office of the 
Premier and as such, Risk Management is a standing item on the quarterly meetings of the Audit 
Committee. The Audit Committee provides an independent and objective view of the Office’s risks 
and effectiveness of the risk management processes.

In addition to the Risk Management Committee, risk owners and risk champions are appointed 
to ensure that risks identified are managed and reported on a quarterly basis. Risk owners and 
champions also ensure that risk management initiatives are taken serious by all officials in the 
Office of the Premier. Risk Management has been incorporated in the performance agreements 
of all Senior Managers and it will be further devolved to Managers and Assistant Managers in 
2016/17 to ensure that risk management becomes everyone’s responsibility. 
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3.	 FRAUD AND CORRUPTION  

The Office of the Premier has, in terms of Treasury Regulations 3.2.1, an approved Fraud 
Prevention Plan to implement the Fraud Prevention Policy.

Management accepts fraud and corruption as a business risk. Acceptance, however, does not 
mean it condones fraud and it therefore commits itself to actively fight fraud and corruption, 
including all other acts of dishonesty, with perseverance and vigour.

Management recognises that it cannot totally eliminate the risk of fraud and corruption, and it 
therefore realises the need to focus on fraud prevention initiatives to limit its overall exposure.
The objectives of the Fraud Prevention Plan are first and foremost, to guide employees and 
the employer on the behaviour and activities that are acceptable and expected by the Office 
of the Premier in achieving its Vision and Mission. It ensures that Management is aware of its 
responsibilities for establishing controls and procedures to prevent and detect fraud and corruption.
Secondly, it provides assurance that all suspected fraudulent activity will be fully investigated. It 
also provides some guidance on the steps and initiatives Management needs to take to prevent 
and combat fraud and corruption.

There are various mechanisms that employees and the public can utilise to make confidential 
disclosures of suspected fraud and corruption. They can call the NACH, the Presidential Hotline, 
write an anonymous note to the Integrity Management Unit or request a private, confidential 
meeting with officials from the Integrity Management Unit where their identity will be kept secret.
Cases are reported through the NACH, the Presidential Hotline, from whistle-blowers, cases 
instituted from Departments and walk-ins. All allegations are investigated by officials in the Forensic 
Audit Unit. Due to capacity challenges in the Unit, the Office of the Premier has a huge backlog 
of cases to be investigated. To address this backlog, service providers have been contracted to 
investigate those cases which have been reported, but could not yet be investigated.

4.	 MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

SMS members disclosed their financial interests in line with Chapter G of the Public Service 
Regulations 2001, as well as the Financial Disclosure Framework and Chapter 4 of the SMS 
Handbook.

Officials who did not disclose their financial interests accordingly were dealt with in line with the 
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provisions of the Disciplinary Code and Procedure. The Public Service Commission was advised 
accordingly. 

5.	 CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Code of Conduct acts as a guide to employees as to what is expected of them from an ethical 
point of view, in their individual conduct, relationship with others and the State as the employer. 
Compliance with the Code of Conduct enhances professionalism and ensures confidence in the 
Public Service and the promotion of exemplary conduct. Notwithstanding this, employees shall 
be guilty of misconduct and may be dealt with in accordance with PSCBC Resolution 1 of 2003 
(applicable to employees that are on salary levels 1 to 12) and the SMS Handbook (applicable to 
employees on salary levels 13 to 16) if they contravene any provisions of the Code. 

6.	 HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The implementation of the Health, Safety and Environmental function is incorporated in the Safety 
Health Environment Risk and Quality Management Pillar, of which one of the requirements is the 
appointment of an official to implement all Health, Safety and Environmental issues in the Office 
of the Premier. 

This post was vacant during the course of the Financial Year 2015/2016 and shall be filled during 
the 2016/2017 Financial Year. There is however an official at Manager’s Level, who is responsible 
for the co-ordination of the implementation of transversal Employee Health and Wellness function 
across the Provincial Administration. The official has been assisting the Office of the Premier in 
implementing its internal Employee Health and Wellness programmes. 
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7.	 PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES
Dates Subject/ 

Agenda
Matters raised by the 
Committee

Implementation by the Office of the 
Premier

14 April 2015 Briefing on 
the 2015/16 
Budget Vote

The Office of the Premier 
must ensure that it spends 
its budget for the 2015/16 
Financial Year strictly in terms 
of its APP for 2015/16.

The Office of the Premier has ensured 
that the budget for the 2015/16 financial 
year is spent in line with the APP and the 
Operational Plan as approved. 

The Office of the Premier must 
report on a quarterly basis 
on the progress made on the 
review of its organisational 
structure.

The Office of the Premier noted the 
resolution and continuously briefed the 
Portfolio Committee on progress with 
regards to its organizational structure.

The Office of the Premier 
must report on a quarterly 
basis on the progress made 
on the implementation of the 
Electronic Case Management 
System. 

The target on Electronic Case 
Management System was incorporated in 
the APP. Thus the Office of the Premier has 
been reporting its performance on Case 
Management on quarterly basis to the 
Legislature.

The Office of the Premier must 
report on a quarterly basis on 
the progress made relative 
to the establishment of the 
Commission that will look into 
the condition of farm dwellers 
in the Province. 

The Commission on the Condition of 
Farm dwellers has been established and 
is scheduled to complete its work by May 
2016.
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Dates Subject/ 
Agenda

Matters raised by the 
Committee

Implementation by the Office of the 
Premier

26 Nov 2015 Briefing on 
Quarter 1 
performance

The Office of the Premier must 
provide a list to indicate the 
expenditure per Department 
incurred relative to the 
outbound missions undertaken 
to Italy and China by the 
Executive Authority.

Furthermore a progress report 
must be submitted on the 
interdepartmental transfers 
from Departments to the Office 
of the Premier relative to the 
expenditure

The list of expenditure incurred as well as 
Department’s transfers to the Office of the 
Premier on both trips to Italy and China is 
attached herewith.

The Office of the Premier 
must submit progress reports 
on the progress relative to 
the backlog of cases from the 
NACH, including the PSC and 
Presidential Anti-Corruption 
Hotline on a quarterly basis.

From 1 April 2015, a total number of 329 
cases were received. 98 cases have been 
closed to date. The total number remaining 
is 231 PSC cases. 

Presidential Hotline cases-From 1 April 
2015: A total number of 854 complaints 
were received. During the course of the 
Financial Year, 139 new complaints were 
received and currently, 958 cases have 
been recorded.

The relevant Portfolio 
Committee must play a 
supportive role in assisting 
the Mpumalanga Commission 
of Inquiry into the Socio-
Economic Conditions of Farm 
Dwellers in Mpumalanga to 
ensure that its objectives can 
be achieved.

On the fourth of December 2015 the Office 
of the Premier made a presentation to 
the Portfolio Committee on the work of 
the Commission on the Socio-Economic 
Conditions of Farm Dwellers. The 
Portfolio Committee committed itself to 
play a supportive role in the work of the 
Commission.

It must be indicated that the Commission 
is right on schedule and is expected to 
complete its work by May 2016.
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Dates Subject/ 
Agenda

Matters raised by the 
Committee

Implementation by the Office of the 
Premier

1 Dec 2015 Briefing on 
2014/15 
Annual Report 

The Office of the Premier must 
continue to lead the Province 
by example and strengthen its 
monitoring function towards 
Government institutions 
to ensure that their best 
practices can be transferred 
and implemented by other 
Government institutions. 

The Monitoring and Evaluation Unit in the 
Office of the Premier continues to work 
closely with the DPME to ensure that the 
Provincial M&E systems, processes and 
tools are aligned with the National policy 
frameworks. This includes participation 
in the National M&E Data harmonisation 
pilot project, as well as ongoing support 
from the GIZ Governance Support 
Programme to ensure that best practices 
are introduced and institutionalised across 
all Departments. 

The Office of the Premier must 
ensure proper adherence 
to relevant key pieces of 
legislation to improve on the 
findings made by the Auditor-
General in this regard.

The Office of the Premier has developed 
an Audit Action Plan to address all the 
issues raised by the Auditor-General, and 
progress on the Action Plan is submitted to 
the Provincial Treasury on a monthly basis.

The Office of the Premier 
must submit the detailed 
report on the performance of 
Departments and the Province 
in general on the Millennium 
Development Goals once it is 
finalized. 

The Office of the Premier will, in 
consultation with all sector Departments, 
prepare a more detailed MDG report by the 
end of the 2015/16 Financial Year. 

The Office of the Premier 
must submit progress reports 
on the progress relative to 
the backlog of cases from 
NACH, including the PSC. the 
Presidential Anti-Corruption 
Hotline on a quarterly basis.

To date, a total of 81 of 238 backlog 
cases received from the NACH have been 
finalised.

Of the 5567 calls received from the 
Presidential hotline, 4655 have been 
resolved and 912 remain open.

The Office of the Premier 
must establish a platform 
where the unintended impact 
that the moratorium on the 
filling of vacant posts has on 
the depletion of the human 
resources of Government can 
be discussed and possible 
solutions be found. 

The Provincial Management Committee 
(PMC) is a platform where all matters 
related to the moratorium are formally 
discussed. This also includes among 
others, matters such as the unintended 
impact of the moratorium, as well as 
possible solutions thereof, which are then 
processed for EXCO’s consideration. 
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Dates Subject/ 
Agenda

Matters raised by the 
Committee

Implementation by the Office of the 
Premier

24 Feb 2016 Briefing on 
Quarter 2 
performance

The Office of the Premier 
must improve on the quality 
of documentation provided 
to the Committee and ensure 
that proper clarity is given on 
issues raised.

Members of top management quality check 
information destined for the Legislature to 
improve quality thereof before it is signed 
off by the Accounting Officer and the 
Executive Authority, in line with its internal 
policy on Management of Performance 
Information. 

The Office of the Premier 
must lead by example and 
endeavour to attain 100% 
implementation of its planned 
targets.

The Office of the Premier endeavours 
to achieve 100% of its planned targets, 
but the reality is that there are significant 
instances of key personnel exit in the 
system during implementation of plans, 
thus some targets could not be achieved.

It must be noted that there are targets 
that are developed on the basis of them 
being the core mandate of the Office, like 
the one on investigation of cases and 
litigations. The Office of the Premier was 
aware that there are personnel capacity 
challenges thus the appointment of the 
panel of experts was piloted to mitigate the 
challenge. In such instances, the necessary 
assessment and possible adjustments will 
be made at the end of the Financial Year.

The Office of the Premier must 
improve its planning capacity 
to ensure adequate planning 
and proper implementation of 
all the planned targets to be 
achieved per annum.

The Office of the Premier through its 
Programme Managers and the Planning 
and Programme Management Unit make 
follow ups on remedial initiatives to achieve 
quarterly targets with a view to ensure that 
where resources allow, targets rolled over 
from one quarter to another are achieved 
before the end of the Financial Year.

The Office of the Premier must 
implement the Mpumalanga 
Development Co-ordination 
Model appropriately in order to 
attain necessary cooperation 
from Departments and 
Municipalities and thereby 
ensuring that planned targets 
that need the cooperation 
of Departments and 
Municipalities are achieved 
timeously.

The Office of the Premier is successfully 
facilitating the appropriate implementation 
of the Operation Vuka Sisebente 
governance model.

All Government Departments, 
Municipalities, Traditional Leaders and 
Civil Society were engaged and are co-
operating on the implementation of the 
model. Stakeholders understand their 
roles. Therefore Municipalities have 
already identified facilities to be used as 
War Rooms (See status report attached) 
which is one of the critical milestones after 
the Provincial and municipality launch of 
the mode, both of which took place towards 
the end of 2015. Planned targets that 
need the co-operation of Departments and 
Municipalities were achieved.
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Dates Subject/ 
Agenda

Matters raised by the 
Committee

Implementation by the Office of the 
Premier

15 March 2016 Briefing on 
Quarter 3 
performance 

The Office of the Premier must 
improve on its performance 
of its Forensic and Integrity 
Management Unit; especially 
against the background of 
the pronouncement by the 
Premier in the State of the 
Province Address to instil 
professionalism and eradicate 
corrupt and fraudulent 
activities in the administration

In an attempt to promote a high standard 
of professional ethics, prevent and 
combat corruption and corrupt activities 
the Integrity Management and Forensic 
Audit Chief Directorate has embarked 
on massive Anti-Corruption Awareness 
Workshops for officials within the Provincial 
Administration since the beginning 
of Financial Year 2016/2017. These 
workshops targeted officials working in 
high risk areas such as SMS Members, 
HR and CFO’s Officials. From April to date 
9 Departments have been workshopped 
namely: Health, DARDLAE, DCSSL, 
DPWR&T, COGTA, Provincial Treasury, 
DCSR, and the Office of the Premier.

The Office of the Premier must 
identify its weaknesses in its 
budget process for capital 
assets and ensure realistic 
budgeting in this regard in 
the 2016/17 Financial Year. 
Furthermore, it must ensure 
that office equipment is 
transferred from one official to 
another to prevent continuous 
procurement of office 
equipment.

The Office of the Premier has made some 
effort to have a realistic budget under 
capital assets for the 2016/17 Financial 
Year. 

The Asset Management Unit is conducting 
asset verification process to identify 
officials who owns more than one 
computer/laptop to ensure that equipment 
are transferred from one official to another 
in order to prevent continuous procurement 
of computer s/laptops

The Office of the Premier 
must, as per their undertaking 
to the committee, elevate the 
filling of the critical post of 
Senior Manager: International 
Relations to the Executive 
Authority and report on 
progress on the filling of the 
post on a regular basis.

The post has been filled and the Senior 
Manager assumed duties on the 1st June 
2016.

8.	 SCOPA RESOLUTIONS
Resolution No. Subject Details Response by the 

department
Resolved (Yes/
No)

3.1. Irregular 
expenditure

Contravention of Supply 
Chain Management 
Legislation

The matter is still under 
investigation

Pending
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Resolution No. Subject Details Response by the 
department

Resolved (Yes/
No)

3.2. Contingent 
liabilities

The Committee noted 
on page 189 of the 
Annual Report that the 
Office of the Premier 
has reported on 
contingent liabilities 
amounting to R18 360 
000.00.

The amount was as a 
result of claims against the 
Office of the Premier that 
are still under investigation

Pending

4.1. Expenditure 
management 
and Internal 
Audit

On page 139, the 
AG reported that 
the internal audit 
function did not assess 
operational procedures 
and monitoring 
mechanisms relating 
to all transfers made 
and received, including 
transfers in terms of 
the annual DoRA, as 
required by Treasury 
Regulation 3.2.8.

The Internal Audit unit has 
conducted an audit on the 
Transfers and Subsidies 
for the current audit period.

Resolved

4.2. Procurement 
and contract 
management

On page 139, the AG 
reported that goods 
and services with 
a transaction value 
above R500 000.00 
were procured without 
inviting competitive 
bids, as per the 
requirements of 
Treasury Regulation 
16A6.1.Deviations 
were approved by the 
Accounting Officer 
even though it was 
not impractical to 
invite competitive 
bids, in contravention 
of Treasury 
Regualtion16A6.4.

The SCM Unit has since 
been strengthened by 
the appointment of the 
manager: SCM and 
the CFO. Furthermore, 
the supply chain 
management policy and 
procedure manual are 
reviewed periodically.

Resolved

9.	 	PRIOR MODIFICATIONS TO AUDIT REPORTS

During the previous Financial Year, the Office of the Premier received an unqualified audit opinion 
with three matters of significant non-compliance with legislation being reported in the AG’s Audit 
Report, namely: Procurement and Contract Management; Expenditure Management and Internal 
Audit. The Office of the Premier embarked on a robust integrated approach to address all matters 
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of emphasis raised in previous report of the AG.

To rectify the situation, the Office developed an action plan to clear all the issues, which included 
among other things, convening a management meeting with the intention to inform all relevant Senior 
Managers and clearly communicate the expectations on dealing with audit findings. Furthermore, 
the Senior Managers were expected to identify root causes for the qualification matters within 
their areas of operations and devise appropriate strategies to prevent re-occurrence. In addition, 
the DG requested a review and update of all the policies and standard operating procedures for 
the Office of the Premier. An audit action plan was developed and the implementation thereof was 
monitored at regular intervals through presentations at Management Committee meetings and 
monthly reporting to the Provincial Treasury.

The Internal Audit Unit developed an audit plan, aimed at evaluating the implementation of the 
plans with regard to the issues of non-compliance. Significant progress has been made to resolve 
the issues.

10.	 INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

The Office of the Premier has not established a separate Internal Control unit. However, 
Management uses the work of the Internal Audit function and where discrepancies are identified; 
they are brought to the attention of Senior Management with recommendations to enhance 
the internal control environment. The Internal Audit function reports regularly at Management 
Committee meetings to ensure that identified internal control deficiencies get addressed on an 
on-going basis.

An Auditor-General’s action plan to address the 2014/15 audit findings was developed, updated 
and monitored at regular intervals. The plan is presented to various stakeholders, such as the 
Audit Committee, Provincial Treasury, Management meetings and the Internal Audit function for 
review, monitoring and recommendations. Progress against the action plan was verified by the 
Internal Audit function.

Also, Management has embarked on a process to review and update internal policies and 
procedure manuals for all operations and activities within the Office of the Premier.
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11.	 INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

11.1	 Internal Audit

In terms of section 38(1)(a)(ii) of the PFMA, the Office of the Premier has established an Internal 
Audit function under the control and direction of an Audit Committee. The Internal Audit function 
remains a shared service and the Unit is therefore responsible for providing internal auditing 
services to the following five departments:

a)	 The Office of the Premier;

b)	 Department of Community Safety, Security and Liaison;

c)	 Department of Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs;

d)	 Department of Culture, Sport and Recreation; and

e)	 Department of Human Settlements.

The shared Internal  Audit function obtains its mandate from the PFMA and its Treasury Regulations.

In line with the definition of internal auditing as per the Institute of Internal Auditors, the primary 
objective of the shared Internal Audit function is to provide an independent, objective assurance 
and consulting activity designed to add-value and improve the operations of the Department.

In keeping with its primary mandate, the Internal Audit Unit supports the Accounting Officer 
through evaluating and contributing to improving the effectiveness of risk management, control 
and governance processes. In addition, it also facilitates the functioning of the shared Audit 
Committee, which is also located within the Office of the Premier.

In terms of the Treasury Regulations, it is required that the conducting of internal audits must 
function in accordance with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal 
Auditing (“Standards”) set by the Institute of Internal Auditors. Effective from 1 January 2002, the 
Standards require that Internal Audit activities should have an external quality assurance review 
conducted at least once every five years by a qualified, independent reviewer or review team from 
outside the organisation.
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The previous external assessment report on the shared Internal Audit function review was 
conducted during October 2009. The subsequent external assessment was conducted during 
2015/16 financial year. Therefore, there was a period of more than five years between the previous 
and the current external assessment, which means that there was a period where the shared 
Internal Audit function was non-compliant with the Standards and the provisions of the PFMA and 
the Treasury Regulations.

The shared Internal Audit function operated within an approved Internal Audit Charter and, except 
for the matters reported above, in accordance with the requirements of the PFMA, the Treasury 
Regulations and the Standards set by the Institute of Internal Auditors. 

During the year under review, the shared Internal Audit function developed a rolling three-year 
Strategic Internal Audit Plan and Annual Internal Audit Coverage/Operational Plan based on the 
results of the strategic risk assessment exercise. In compiling the plans, the shared Internal Audit 
function sourced the input of Management. Following the recommendation by the Accounting 
Officer, the plans were considered and approved by the Audit Committee on 19 May 2015.

The Annual Internal Audit Coverage/Operational Plan identified different audit assignments and 
these were performed by the Internal Audit Unit as such. Respective reports were issued to 
Management communicating identified control weaknesses, recommendations for improvement(s), 
and also incorporated agreed Management action plans for implementation of corrective action.

In addition, as required in terms of the PFMA and the Internal Audit Charter, the identified control 
weaknesses were also communicated and tabled at the meetings of the Audit Committee to allow 
for monitoring and oversight.

The following is the summary of the audit work done by the Internal Audit function during the year 
under review as per the approved plans:

§	Monitoring and tracking of audit findings as previously reported by both AGSA and the Internal 
Audit function in order to evaluate progress made by Management in implementing agreed 
audit action plans. Follow-up reviews were performed to evaluate the effectiveness and 
improvements to internal control environment;

§	Review of the adequacy of Policies and Procedures for the Office;

§	Review of Departmental Performance Information;

§	Review of Interim and Annual Financial Statements;

§	Information and Communication Technology Audits;
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§	Risk Management processes;

§	Financial Management and Accounting related audits: Supply Chain Management; and 
Transfer Payments;

§	Human Resources Management related audits: Training and Development;

§	Operational audits: Review of Monitoring and Evaluation processes;

§	Consulting work included the review of the Management self-scoring and adequacy of evidence 
provided in support of such scoring as per the MPAT as well as verification of the adequacy of 
evidence related to the Internal Control and Compliance Matrix.

12	 Report of the Audit Committee 

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2016. 

Audit Committee Members and Attendance 

The Audit Committee consists of the members listed hereunder and should meet at least twice a 
year as per section 77(b) of the PFMA. During the current year, four meetings were held by the 
Audit Committee. 

Current Audit Committee

Name Qualifications Role
Scheduled Meetings
Held Attended

Ms P Mzizi CA(SA) BBusSci Finance (UCT)

BCompt Hons CTA (UNISA)

BCom Hons in Transport 
Economics (UNISA)

Chairperson

External Member

Appointed - 01 Feb 
2016

0 0

Adv G Khoza BProc (UWC)

LLB (UWC)

HDip in Tax Law (RAU)

External Member

Appointed - 01 Feb 
2016

0 0

Mr XP Khumalo CA(SA) BCom (UN)

BCom Hons(Accounting) (UN)

External Member

Appointed - 01 Feb 
2016

0 0
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Mr MS Mthembu

FAP(IAC) SA, GIA(IIA) 
SA, LIB (IOB)SA

Diploma in Accounting and 
Business Studies (UNISWA)

BCom Accounting (UNISWA)

MBL (UNISA)

External Member

Appointed - 01 Feb 
2016

0 0

Mr T Zororo CIA, CISA, 
CISM, CRMA, CRISC, 
CGEIT, COBIT 5 
Certified Assessor

BSc Hons Information Systems 
(MSU - Zim)

Higher Diploma in Computer 
Auditing (Wits)

External Member

Appointed - 01 Feb 
2016

0 0

Outgoing Audit Committee

Name Qualifications Role
Scheduled Meetings

Held Attended
Ms G Deiner 
Professional Accountant 
(SA)

BA Degree

HDip in Education

BCompt

Chairperson

External Member

Appointed from 01 Jun 
2009 - 30 Sept 2015

4 4

Adv G Khoza BProc (UWC)

LLB (UWC)

HDip in Tax Law (RAU)

External Member

Appointed from 01 Mar 
2014 - 30 Sept 2015

4 4

Mr XP Khumalo CA(SA) BCom (UN)

BCom Hons(Accounting) (UN)

External Member

Appointed from  01 Oct 
2012 - 30 Sept 2015

4 2

Ms T Njozela BCom

BCompt Hons

MBA

External Member

Appointed from  01 Oct 
2012 - 30 Sept 2015

4 3

Audit Committee Responsibility 

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 
38(1)(a)(ii) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.

The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as 
its Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has 
discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.

The effectiveness of internal controls

In line with the PFMA, Internal Audit provides the Audit Committee and Management with assurance 
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that the internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by evaluating internal 
controls to determine their effectiveness and efficiency, and by developing recommendations for 
enhancement or improvement. Our review of the findings of the Internal Audit work, which was 
based on the risk assessments conducted in the department revealed certain weaknesses, which 
were then raised with the department. 

The following internal audit work was completed during the year under review as approved plans:

•	 Monitoring and tracking of audit findings as previously reported by both AGSA and the In-
ternal Audit function in order to evaluate progress made by Management in implementing 
agreed audit action plans. Follow-up reviews were performed to evaluate the effectiveness 
and improvements to internal control environment;

•	 Review of the adequacy of Policies and Procedures for the Office;

•	 Review of Departmental Performance Information;

•	 Review of Interim and Annual Financial Statements;

•	 Information and Communication Technology Audits;

•	 Risk Management processes;

•	 Financial Management and Accounting related audits: Supply Chain Management; and 
Transfer Payments;

•	 Human Resources Management related audits: Training and Development;

•	 Operational audits: Review of Monitoring and Evaluation processes;

•	 Consulting work included the review of the Management self-scoring and adequacy of ev-
idence provided in support of such scoring as per the MPAT as well as verification of the 
adequacy of evidence related to the Internal Control and Compliance Matrix.

From the above reports of the Internal Auditors and reports of the AGSA it was noted that matters 
were reported indicating deficiencies in the system of internal controls in areas pertaining to 
financial reporting; reporting on pre-determined objectives and  compliance with laws and 
regulations.  Through our analysis of the audit reports and engagement with the Office we can 
report that the system on internal controls for the period under review was not entirely adequate 
and effective.

In-Year Management and Quarterly Reporting

The Office has reported to the Provincial Treasury as required by the PFMA.



101

ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2015/2016 FINANCIAL YEAR VOTE 1:  OFFICE OF THE PREMIER MPUMALANGA PROVINCE 

Evaluation of Financial Statements 

The Audit Committee reviewed the draft annual financial statements prepared by the Office and 
has advised the Accounting Officer to ensure that all the review notes and comments of the In-
ternal Audit and Audit Committee are fully addressed prior to submission of the annual financial 
statements to the Auditor-General South Africa.  

The Audit Committee has: 

•	 reviewed and discussed the external audit outcomes on the audited annual financial state-
ments to be included in the annual report, with the Auditor-General South Africa and the 
Accounting Officer,

•	 reviewed the Auditor-General South Africa’s management report and Management’s re-
sponses thereto, and

•	 reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit.

Evaluation of reporting on pre-determined objectives

The Audit Committee reviewed the draft annual report prepared by the department and has ad-
vised the accounting officer to ensure that all the review notes and comments of the Internal 
Audit and Audit Committee are fully addressed prior to submission of the annual report to the 
Auditor-General South Africa. 

The Audit Committee has discussed the external audit outcomes on the reporting on pre-deter-
mined objectives to be included in the annual report with the Auditor-General South Africa and the 
Accounting Officer.

Risk Management

The Audit Committee is responsible for the oversight of risk management. The Risk Management 
Committee reports to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis on the governance and management 
of risk. The Audit Committee has reviewed reports from the Risk Management Committee on 
implementation plan of risk management strategies and processes and is reasonably satisfied 
with the reports received. 

Also, the Audit Committee has reviewed the Department’s fraud prevention plan.

Based on the quarterly reviews performed, the departmental processes and system relating to 
fraud prevention and risk management is not entirely adequate and effective
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Internal Audit 

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the Internal Audit function operated effectively during the 
year under review. The Audit Committee also notes that the deficiencies in the risk management 
system mentioned above impact on the implementation of the risk based audit approach.

Auditor-General South Africa

We have reviewed the department’s implementation plan for audit issues raised in the previous 
year and concluded that it is adequate but partially effective as some of the matters have not been 
adequately resolved. 

The Audit Committee is not aware of any unresolved issues with respect to the current audit. 

The Audit Committee concurs and accepts the conclusions of the Auditor-General South Africa on 
the Annual Financial Statements and is of the opinion that the audited annual financial statements 
be accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor-General South Africa.

General

The Audit Committee strongly recommends that the Department must prioritise the adequate and 
effective implementation and frequent monitoring of the audit action plans for both internal and 
external audit in order to achieve the required effectiveness in governance, accountability and the 
clean administration.

Conclusion

The Audit Committee wishes to extend its appreciation to the Executive Authority, Accounting 
Officer and Management, Internal Auditors and Auditor-General South Africa for their tireless 
efforts, commitment and support throughout the year.

Signed on behalf of the Audit Committee by:

______________________ 
Ms P Mzizi CA (SA)
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Date: 31 July 2016
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PART D:  
HUMAN RESOURCE 

MANAGEMENT
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1.	 INTRODUCTION 

The information contained in this part of the annual report has been prescribed by the Minister for 
the Public Service and Administration for all departments in the Public Service.

2.	 OVERVIEW OF HUMAN RESOURCES 

The status of human resources in the Office of the Premier

The Office of the Premier recognises the significance of the fast growing environmental changes 
in the Human Resource fraternity. Therefore, it positions itself accordingly and continues 
to emphasise the importance of keeping up with the latest human resource trends, aimed at 
improving effectiveness and efficiency within its ranks. The Human Resource Management and 
Development Unit, under the auspices of the General Manager: Strategic Human Resource 
Services is strategically positioned in a way that facilitates the functioning of the Office of the 
Premier’s line units. It plays a pivotal role in providing support to all the line units with the purpose 
of facilitating the achievement of the goals and objectives of the Office of the Premier as outlined 
at beginning of the Financial Year.

Human Resource priorities for the year under review and the impact of these 

The Office of the Premier has made very few appointments during the course of the Financial 
Year 2015/16. The main reason for making few appointments is attributed to the moratorium that 
was issued in February 2015. The moratorium stipulated that no vacant and funded posts shall 
be filled as at the 4th of February 2015. It further stated that Departments may, if needs be, seek 
approval of the Executive Council for special exemption in respect of posts to be filled. However, 
in a few instances approval for special exemption was obtained from the Executive Council. 
In those few cases where approval regrading special exemption was obtained, the Office has 
improved tremendously in terms of reducing time taken to fill vacant positions. The improvement 
was achieved, owing  to the continued implementation of the provisions of the recruitment 
strategy, i.e. Manual on reducing time taken to fill vacant positions, as well as the support that 
the Accounting Officer and the Programme Managers have been providing to the Internal Human 
Resource Management and Development Unit. . 

Capacitate employees by implementing Workplace Skills Plan

Most of the planned training programmes were implemented with the exception of a few that could 
not be implemented, owing to financial constraints. The three training programmes that could not 
be conducted during this course of the Financial Year have been rolled over and incorporated into 
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the Workplace Skills Plan 2016/2017. Measures were put in place to ensure that, all participants 
of the various courses and programmes submitted their portfolios of evidence and or assignments 
on or before the stipulated deadlines. All officials who underwent training during the course of this 
Financial Year, have displayed improvement in carrying out their duties within their respective 
units.

Workforce planning and key strategies to attract and recruit a skilled and capable workforce

The Office of the Premier has an approved Human Resource Plan that had to be adjusted slightly 
to incorporate the provisions and requirements of the moratorium. The Human Resource Plan 
was reviewed and submitted to the DPSA as per the requirement. It outlines clearly the need and 
strategies to attract and recruit a skilled workforce. It also outlines the need to reduce the period 
taken to fill vacant posts to at least six months and reduce the vacancy rate to below the National 
norm of 10%. It further emphasises the need to meet all employment equity targets as reflected 
in the approved Employment Equity Plan of the Office of the Premier. 

Implementation of Performance Management and Development System (PMDS)

The Office of the Premier has shown stability in relation to the implementation of the PMDS in 
terms of the approved PMDP, for officials on salary levels 3-12. The signing of Performance 
Agreements by SMS members on or before the deadline as per Chapter 4 of the SMS Handbook 
has also been excellent (100% compliance). There has also been a slight improvement regarding 
the assessment of SMS members in this regard. The various workshops on PMDS, as conducted 
annually, are gradually yielding the desired results. 

Implementation of Employee Health and Wellness Programme

The Office of the Premier has a transversal unit (Transversal Human Resource Management 
Services), which is entrusted with the responsibility of implementing the employee health and 
wellness programme within the Office of the Premier and further co-ordinates EH&W programmes 
across the Mpumalanga Provincial Government. 

Finalisation of disciplinary cases within ninety days

Only two disciplinary cases were received in the Office of the Premier during this Financial Year. 
The cases were finalised within the prescribed timeframe. 

Implementation of Policy and Procedure on Incapacity and Ill-health Retirement (PILIR)

The number of applications for incapacity leave has increased during the course of this Financial 
Year when compared with the previous one. The reason for the increase in applications for 
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incapacity leave could be attributed to the fact that the sick leave cycle ended on 31 December 
2015. It has been noted however, that all employees understand the provisions of the PILIR. 
Thus, the abuse of sick leave has decreased significantly. The extension of the contract of the 
Health Risk Manager by the DPSA has ensured continuity in terms of handling PILIR cases within 
the predetermined and prescribed timeframes.

Achievements and challenges faced by the Office of the Premier, as well as future human 
resource plans/goals

Achievements

•	 Availability of an approved organogram.

•	 Availability of an approved comprehensive human resource plan, which was submitted to the 
DPSA before the deadline.

•	 Availability of an approved comprehensive human resource planning implementation report, 
which was submitted to the DPSA before the deadline.

•	 Availability of an approved Employment Equity Plan and report, which were submitted to the 
DPSA and the Department of Labour, respectively before the deadline.

•	 Representation of people with disabilities, i.e. 3.3% (8 of 246) employees.

•	 Availability of an approved strategy to reduce the time period taken to fill vacant posts leading 
to a decrease in the vacancy rate, i.e. The Office of the Premier had 246 filled posts and 7 
vacant funded posts by the 31st of March 2016. Thus, the occupancy rate stood at 95.7% while 
the vacancy rate was 4.3%. The figures above are based on the fact that after a thorough 
PERSAL clean-up which was triggered by the moratorium, the Office of the Premier had a total 
of 257 approved and funded posts on the establishment. 

•	 Appointments were effected only after security screening and the verification of qualifications 
were finalized.

•	 Successful implementation of competency assessment before filling of posts on salary levels 
11-16.

•	 Finalization of disciplinary cases received within the prescribed timeframe.

•	 Improved turnaround times for evaluation of posts.
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•	 Availability of several approved human resource policies.

Challenges

•	 Non-achievement of 50% target of women representation at SMS level – No or very limited 
posts that can be used to absorb women.

•	 Non-completion of certain planned Workplace Skills Plan (WSP) programmes.

•	 No implementation of some human resource practices and or policies, owing to the EXCO and 
PMC resolutions, e.g.: No payment of acting allowances; and No retention of staff. 

•	 Limited Departmental activities on Employee Health and Wellness.

•	 The imposed moratorium not to fill vacant funded posts and/or abolishing of vacant funded 
posts on the establishment.

•	 No alignment between the approved organogram and the PERSAL establishment.

Future human resource plans /goals

•	 Target women to fill vacant SMS posts (critical), subject to obtaining approval from EXCO.

•	 Adherence to the Workplace Skills Plan to enable implementation of all planned programmes.

•	 Appoint an Internal Employee Health and Wellness Programme Co-ordinator.

•	 Adherence to Employee Health and Wellness Plans to ensure that all EHW programmes are 
implemented.

•	 Identify and motivate for the filling of critical positions. 

•	 Review the organogram of the Office of the Premier and obtain approval thereof.
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3.	 HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS 

3.1.	 Personnel related expenditure

The following tables summarise the final audited personnel related expenditure by programme 
and by salary bands. In particular, it provides an indication of the following:

•	 Amount spent on personnel 

•	 Amount spent on salaries, overtime, homeowners allowances and medical aid. 

Table 3.1.1 Personnel expenditure by programme for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 
2016

Programme Total 
expenditure 
(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure 
(R’000)

Training 
expenditure
(R’000)

Professional 
and special 
services 
expenditure 
(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure 
as a % of total 
expenditure

Average 
personnel 
cost per 
employee 
(R’000)

Administration 124 043 48 831 0 0 39.4 195

Institutional 
Development 

85 658 43 999 0 0 51.4 176

Policy and 
Governance 

52 691 29 850 0 0 56.7 119

Total 262 393 122 680 0 0 46.8 490

Table 3.1.2 Personnel costs by salary band for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Salary band Personnel 

expenditure 
(R’000)

% of total 
personnel 
cost

No. of 
employees

Average 
personnel 
cost per 
employee 
(R’000)

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 11 896 9.7 57 202

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 17 548 14.3 54 319 
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 
9-12) 47 511 38.7 86 584 

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 34 494 28.1 28 1 232

Contract (Levels 1-2) 93 0.1 1 93 

Contract (Levels 3-5) 1 076 0.9 6 179 

Contract (Levels 6-8) 264 0.2 1 264 

Contract (Levels 9-12) 2 883 2.4 8 360 

Contract (Levels 13-16) 6 915 5.6 5 1 383 

TOTAL 122 680 100 246 4 986



109

ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2015/2016 FINANCIAL YEAR VOTE 1:  OFFICE OF THE PREMIER MPUMALANGA PROVINCE 

Table 3.1.3 Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by programme 
for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Programme

Salaries Overtime  Home owners 
Allowance

 Medical Aid

Amount 
(R’000

Salaries 
as a % of 
personnel 
costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

Over-
time 
as a % 
of per-
sonnel 
costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

HOA as 
a % of 
personnel 
costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

Medical 
aid as a 
% of per-
sonnel 
costs 

Pr1: 
Administration 37 089 70.1 736 1.4 985 1.9 1513 2.9
Pr2: 
Institutional 
Development 33 625 73.4 77 0.2 1 004 2.2 1574 3.4
Pr3: 
Policy and 
Governance 22 981 65.8 167 0.5 538 1.5 896 2.6
Total 93 695 70.1 980 0.7 2 527 1.9 3983 3

Table 3.1.4 Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by salary band 
for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Salary band
Salaries Overtime Home Owners 

Allowance
Medical Aid

Amount 
(R’000

Salaries 
as a % of 
personnel 
costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

Overtime 
as a % of 
personnel 
costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

HOA as 
a % of 
personnel 
costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

Medi-
cal aid 
as a % 
of per-
sonnel 
costs 

Skilled 
(Levels 3-5) 7 906 66 227 1.9 730 6.1 845 7

Highly skilled 
production 
(Levels 6-8) 12 561 70.1 348 1.9 662 3.7 931 5.2

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 37 909 69.2 379 0.7 627 1.1 1 617 3

Senior 
management 
(Levels 13-
16) 26 305 71.4 0 0 178 0.5 500 1.4

Contract 
(Levels 1-2) 93 100 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract 
(Levels 3-5) 821 75.9 0 0 56 5.2 23 2.1
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Salary band
Salaries Overtime Home Owners 

Allowance
Medical Aid

Amount 
(R’000

Salaries 
as a % of 
personnel 
costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

Overtime 
as a % of 
personnel 
costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

HOA as 
a % of 
personnel 
costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

Medi-
cal aid 
as a % 
of per-
sonnel 
costs 

Contract 
(Levels 6-8) 196 72.6 0 0 12 4.4 0 0

Contract 
(Levels 9-12) 2 327 77.6 25 0.8 22 0.7 51 1.7

Contract 
(Levels 13-
16) 5 577 72.7 0 0 240 3.1 14 0.2

TOTAL 93 695 70.1 980 0.7 2 527 1.9 3 983 3

3.2.	 Employment and Vacancies

The tables in this section summarise the position with regard to employment and vacancies. 

The following tables summarise the number of posts in the establishment, the number of employees, 
the vacancy rate, and whether there are any staff that are additional to the establishment. 

This information is presented in terms of three key variables:

•	 Programme;

•	 Salary band;

•	 Critical occupations (see definition in notes below).

The various programmes in the Office of the Premier have identified critical occupations that need 
to be monitored. In terms of current regulations, it is possible to create a post in the establishment 
that can be occupied by more than one employee. Therefore, the vacancy rate reflects the 
percentage of posts that are not filled. 



111

ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2015/2016 FINANCIAL YEAR VOTE 1:  OFFICE OF THE PREMIER MPUMALANGA PROVINCE 

Table 3.2.1 Employment and vacancies by programme as on 31 March 2016
Programme Number of 

posts on 
approved 
establishment

Number of 
posts filled

Vacancy Rate Number of 
employees additional 
to the establishment

Programme 1: Administration, 
Permanent 98 92 6.1 0
Programme 2: Institutional 
Development, Permanent 101 101 0 0
Programme 3: Policy and 
planning, Permanent 58 53 8.6 0
TOTAL 257 246 4.3 0

Table 3.2.2 Employment and vacancies by salary band as on 31 March 2016
Salary band Number of 

posts on 
approved 
establishment

Number of 
posts filled

Vacancy Rate Number of employees 
additional to the 
establishment

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2), 
Permanent 1 1 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5), 
Permanent 59 59 0 0

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8), Permanent 56 55 1.8 0

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12), Permanent 89 87 2.2 0

Senior management (Levels 
13-16), Permanent 31 27 12.9 0

Contract (Levels 1-2), 
Permanent 1 1 0 0

Contract (Levels 3-5), 
Permanent 6 6 0 0

Contract (Levels 6-8), 
Permanent 1 1 0 0

Contract (Levels 9-12), 
Permanent 8 8 0 0

Contract (Levels 13-16), 
Permanent 5 5 0 0

TOTAL 257 246 4.3 0
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Table 3.2.3 Employment and vacancies by critical occupations as on 31 March 2016
Critical occupation Number of 

posts on 
approved 
establishment

Number of 
posts filled

Vacancy Rate Number of employees 
additional to the 
establishment

Administrative related, 
Permanent 58 52 10.3 0
Cleaners in offices workshops 
hospitals etc., Permanent 11 11 0 0
Client inform 
clerks(Switchboard; 
Receptionist; Inform Clerk), 
Permanent 3 3 0 0
Communication and 
information related, Permanent 22 22 0 0
Finance and economics 
related, Permanent 14 14 0 0
Financial and related 
professionals, Permanent 1 1 0 0
Financial clerks and credit 
controllers, Permanent 22 22 0 0
Head of department/chief 
executive officer, Permanent 1 0 100 0
Household food and laundry 
services related, Permanent 1 1 0 0
Human resources & 
organisational development 
& related professional, 
Permanent 3 3 0 0
Human resources clerks, 
Permanent 7 7 0 0
Human resources related, 
Permanent 17 17 0 0

Legal related, Permanent 1 1 0 0
Library mail and related clerks, 
Permanent 6 6 0 0
Messengers porters and 
deliverers, Permanent 1 1 0 0
Motor vehicle drivers, 
Permanent 3 3 0 0
Other administrative & 
related clerks and organisers, 
Permanent 27 27 0 0
Other administrative policy and 
related officers, Permanent 2 2 0 0

Other occupations, Permanent 5 5 0 0
Risk management and security 
services, Permanent 1 1 0 0
Secretaries & other keyboard 
operating clerks, Permanent 27 25 7.4 0

Senior managers, Permanent 24 22 8.3 0

TOTAL 257 246 4.3 0
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3.3.	 Filling of SMS Posts

The tables in this section provide information on employment and vacancies as it relates to 
members of the Senior Management Service by salary level. It also provides information on 
advertising and filling of SMS posts, reasons for not complying with prescribed timeframes and 
disciplinary steps taken.

Table 3.3.1 SMS post information as on 31 March 2016
SMS Level Total 

number 
of funded 
SMS 
posts 

Total 
number of  
SMS posts 
filled 

% of SMS 
posts filled 

Total number 
of SMS posts 
vacant 

% of SMS posts 
vacant

Director-General/ Head of 
Department 1 1 100 0 0

Salary Level 16 0 0 0 0 0

Salary Level 15 4 3 75 1 25

Salary Level 14 8 5 62.5 3 37.5

Salary Level 13 21 21 100 0 0

Total 34 30 88.2 4 11.8

Table 3.3.2 SMS post information as on 30 September 2015
SMS Level Total 

number 
of funded 
SMS 
posts 

Total 
number of  
SMS posts 
filled 

% of SMS 
posts filled 

Total number 
of SMS posts 
vacant 

% of SMS posts 
vacant 

Director-General/ Head of 
Department 1 1 100 0 0

Salary Level 16 0 0 0 0 0

Salary Level 15 4 4 100 0 0

Salary Level 14 8 6 75 2 25

Salary Level 13 21 21 100 0 0

Total 34 32 94.1 2 5.9
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Table 3.3.3 Advertising and filling of SMS posts for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 
2016

SMS Level Advertising Filling of Posts

Number of 
vacancies per 
level advertised 
within 6 months of 
becoming vacant 

Number of vacancies 
per level filled within 
6 months of becoming 
vacant 

Number of vacancies per 
level not filled within 6 
months but filled in 12 
months 

Director-General/ Head of 
Department 1 1 0

Salary Level 16 0 0 0

Salary Level 15 0 0 0

Salary Level 14 0 0 0

Salary Level 13 0 0 0

Total 1 1 0

Table 3.3.4 Reasons for not having complied with the filling of funded vacant SMS posts 
- Advertised within 6 months and filled within 12 months after becoming vacant for the 
period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months
No approval for the advertisement of the applicable posts could be obtained from the Executive 
Council within the applicable period

Reasons for vacancies not filled within twelve months
No approval for the filling of the applicable posts could be obtained from the Executive Council 
within the applicable period

Table 3.3.5 Disciplinary steps taken for not complying with the prescribed timeframes for 
filling SMS posts within 12 months for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months
Not applicable

Reasons for vacancies not filled within six months

Not applicable

3.4.	 Job Evaluation

Within a Nationally determined framework, Executing Authorities may evaluate or re-evaluate 
any job in his or her organisation. In terms of the Regulations all vacancies on salary levels 9 and 
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higher must be evaluated before they are filled. The following table summarises the number of 
jobs that were evaluated during the year under review. The table also provides statistics on the 
number of posts that were upgraded or downgraded. 

Table 3.4.1 Job Evaluation by Salary band for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Salary band Number of 

posts on 
approved 
establish-
ment

Number of 
Jobs Eval-
uated

% of posts 
evaluated 
by salary 
bands

Posts Upgraded Posts downgraded
Number % of  posts 

evaluated
Number % of  posts 

evaluated

Lower skilled 
(Levels 1-2) 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contract (Levels 
1-2) 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contract (Levels 
3-5) 6 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contract (Levels 
6-8) 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contract (Levels 
9-12) 8 2 25 0 0 0 0
Contract (Band 
A) 2 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contract (Band 
B) 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contract (Band 
C) 2 0 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled (Levels 
3-5) 59 0 0 0 0 0 0
Highly skilled 
production 
(Levels 6-8) 56 0 0 0 0 0 0
Highly skilled 
supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 89 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior 
Management 
Service Band A 22 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior 
Management 
Service Band B 4 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior 
Management 
Service Band C 3 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior 
Management 
Service Band D 2 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL 257 0 0 0 0 0 0

The following table provides a summary of the number of employees whose positions were 
upgraded due to their post being upgraded. The number of employees might differ from the 
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number of posts upgraded since not all employees are automatically absorbed into the new posts 
and some of the posts upgraded could also be vacant.

Table 3.4.2 Profile of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being 
upgraded for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Gender African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Employees with a disability 0

The following table summarises the number of cases where remuneration bands exceeded the 
grade determined by job evaluation. Reasons for the deviation are provided in each case.

Table 3.4.3 Employees with salary levels higher than those determined by job evaluation 
by occupation for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Occupation Number of 
employees

Job evaluation 
level

Remuneration 
level

Reason for 
deviation

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

Total number of employees whose salaries exceeded the level determined by job 
evaluation 0

Percentage of total employed 0

The following table summarises the beneficiaries of the above in terms of race, gender, and 
disability.

Table 3.4.4 Profile of employees who have salary levels higher than those determined by 
job evaluation for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Gender African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

Employees with a disability 0 0 0 0 0
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Total number of Employees whose salaries exceeded the grades determined by job 
evaluation 0

3.5.	 Employment Changes

This section provides information on changes in employment over the Financial Year. Turnover 
rates provide an indication of trends in the employment profile of the Office of the Premier. The 
following tables provide a summary of turnover rates by salary band and critical occupations (see 
definition in notes below).

Table 3.5.1 Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 
2016

Salary band Number of 
employees at 
beginning of 
period-1 April 2015

Appointments 
and transfers 
into the 
Department

Terminations 
and 
transfers 
out of the 
Department 

Turnover 
rate

Skilled (Levels 3-5), Permanent 60 1 1 1.7

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8), 
Permanent 56 0 1 1.8

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12), 
Permanent 93 0 7 7.5

Senior Management Service Band A, 
Permanent 22 0 1 4.5

Senior Management Service Band B, 
Permanent 6 0 2 33.3

Senior Management Service Band C, 
Permanent 2 0 0 0

Senior Management Service Band D, 
Permanent 1 0 0 0

Contract (Levels 1-2), Permanent 3 0 3 100

Contract (Levels 3-5), Permanent 6 1 1 16.7

Contract (Levels 6-8), Permanent 1 0 0 0

Contract (Levels 9-12), Permanent 3 5 0 0

Contract (Band A), Permanent 2 0 0 0

Contract (Band B), Permanent 1 0 0 0

Contract (Band C), Permanent 2 0 0 0

Contract (Band D), Permanent 1 0 1 100

TOTAL 259 7 17 6.6
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Table 3.5.2 Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 
March 2016

Critical occupation Number of 
employees at 
beginning of 
period- 1 April 
2015

Appointments 
and transfers 
into the 
Department

Terminations 
and 
transfers 
out of the 
Department

Turnover 
rate

Administrative related, Permanent 58 4 5 8.6

Cleaners in offices workshops hospitals 
etc., Permanent 11 0 0 0

Client inform clerks(Switchboard; 
Receptionist; Inform Clerk), Permanent 3 0 0 0

Communication and information related, 
Permanent 20 0 0 0

Economists, Permanent 1 0 0 0

Finance and economics related, 
Permanent 14 0 1 7.1

Financial and related professionals, 
Permanent 1 0 0 0

Financial clerks and credit controllers, 
Permanent 22 0 0 0

Head of department/chief executive 
officer, Permanent 1 0 1 100

Household food and laundry services 
related, Permanent 1 0 0 0

Human resources & organisational 
development & related professional, 
Permanent 4 0 1 25

Human resources clerks, Permanent 10 0 3 30

Human resources related, Permanent 17 0 0 0

Information technology related, 
Permanent 1 0 0 0

Legal related, Permanent 1 0 0 0

Library mail and related clerks, 
Permanent 6 1 1 16.7

Messengers porters and deliverers, 
Permanent 1 0 0 0

Motor vehicle drivers, Permanent 3 0 0 0

Other administrative & related clerks and 
organisers, Permanent 26 0 0 0

Other administrative policy and related 
officers, Permanent 2 0 0 0

Other occupations, Permanent 4 0 0 0
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Critical occupation Number of 
employees at 
beginning of 
period- 1 April 
2015

Appointments 
and transfers 
into the 
Department

Terminations 
and 
transfers 
out of the 
Department

Turnover 
rate

Risk management and security services, 
Permanent 1 0 0 0

Secretaries & other keyboard operating 
clerks, Permanent 28 2 2 7.1

Senior managers, Permanent 23 0 3 13

TOTAL 259 7 17 6.6

The table below identifies the major reasons why staff left the Office of the Premier. 

Table 3.5.3 Reasons why staff left the Office of the Premier for the period 1 April 2015 to 
31 March 2016

Termination Type  Number % of Total Resignations
Death 0 0
Resignation 9 52.9
Expiry of contract 3 17.6
Dismissal – operational changes 0 0
Dismissal – misconduct 0 0
Dismissal – inefficiency 0 0
Discharged due to ill-health 0 0
Retirement 5 29.4
Transfer to other Public Service Departments 9 9
Other 0 0
Total 17 100
Total number of employees who left as a % of 
total employment

 17 6.6

Table 3.5.4 Promotions by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Occupation Employees 

1 April 
2015

Promotions 
to another 
salary level

Salary level 
promotions 
as a % of 
employees 
by 
occupation

Progressions 
to another 
notch within 
a salary level

Notch 
progression 
as a % of 
employees by 
occupation

Administrative related 58 0 0 27 46.6

Cleaners in offices workshops 
hospitals etc. 11 0 0 5 45.5
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Occupation Employees 
1 April 
2015

Promotions 
to another 
salary level

Salary level 
promotions 
as a % of 
employees 
by 
occupation

Progressions 
to another 
notch within 
a salary level

Notch 
progression 
as a % of 
employees by 
occupation

Client inform 
clerks(Switchboard; 
Receptionist; Inform Clerk) 3 0 0 1 33.3

Communication and 
information related 20 0 0 8 40

Economists 1 0 0 0 0

Finance and economics 
related 14 0 0 10 71.4

Financial and related 
professionals 1 0 0 0 0

Financial clerks and credit 
controllers 22 0 0 14 63.6

Head of department/chief 
executive officer 1 0 0 0 0

Household food and laundry 
services related 1 0 0 0 0

Human resources & 
organisational development & 
related professional 4 0 0 2 50

Human resources clerks 10 0 0 5 50

Human resources related 17 0 0 13 76.5

Information technology related 1 0 0 1 100

Legal related 1 0 0 1 100

Library mail and related clerks 6 0 0 4 66.7

Messengers porters and 
deliverers 1 0 0 0 0

Motor vehicle drivers 3 0 0 2 66.7

Other administrative & related 
clerks and organisers 26 0 0 19 73.1

Other administrative policy 
and related officers 2 0 0 2 100

Other occupations 4 0 0 2 50

Risk management and 
security services 1 0 0 1 100

Secretaries & other keyboard 
operating clerks 28 0 0 16 57.1

Senior managers 23 0 0 7 30.4
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Occupation Employees 
1 April 
2015

Promotions 
to another 
salary level

Salary level 
promotions 
as a % of 
employees 
by 
occupation

Progressions 
to another 
notch within 
a salary level

Notch 
progression 
as a % of 
employees by 
occupation

TOTAL 259 0 0 140 54.1

Table 3.5.5 Promotions by salary band for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Salary Band Employees 

1 April 
2015

Promotions 
to another 
salary level

Salary 
bands 
promotions 
as a % of 
employees 
by salary 
level

Progressions 
to another 
notch within 
a salary level

Notch progression as 
a % of
employees by salary 
bands

Skilled (Levels 3-5), 
Permanent 60 0 0 42 70

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8), Permanent 56 0 0 32 57.1

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12), Permanent 93 0 0 53 57

Senior management 
(Levels 13-16), 
Permanent 31 0 0 13 41.9

Contract (Levels 1-2), 
Permanent 3 0 0 0 0

Contract (Levels 3-5), 
Permanent 6 0 0 0 0

Contract (Levels 6-8), 
Permanent 1 0 0 0 0

Contract (Levels 9-12), 
Permanent 3 0 0 0 0

Contract (Levels 13-16), 
Permanent 6 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 259 0 0 140 54.1
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3.6.	 Employment Equity 

Table 3.6.1 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of 
the following occupational categories as on 31 March 2015

Occupational category Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Legislators, senior 
officials and managers, 
Permanent 12 0 0 3 5 0 1 3 24

Professionals, Permanent 33 2 1 1 23 0 0 1 61

Technicians and 
associate professionals, 
Permanent 25 0 0 1 29 1 0 1 57

Clerks, Permanent 21 0 0 0 61 2 1 0 85

Service and sales 
workers, Permanent 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Plant and machine 
operators and 
assemblers, Permanent 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Elementary occupations, 
Permanent 3 0 0 0 11 0 0 0 14

TOTAL 97 2 1 5 131 3 2 5 246

Employees with 
disabilities 5 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 8

3.6.2 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the 
following occupational bands as on 31 March 2016
Occupational band Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management, 
Permanent 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Senior Management, 
Permanent 11 1 0 3 8 0 0 1 24

Professionally qualified 
and experienced 
specialists and mid-
management, Permanent 41 1 1 2 35 1 0 2 83

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior 
management, supervisors, 
foremen, Permanent 17 0 0 0 36 1 0 1 55
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Occupational band Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making, Permanent 11 0 0 0 46 1 1 0 59

Unskilled and defined 
decision making, 
Permanent 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Contract (Top 
Management), Permanent 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

Contract (Senior 
Management), Permanent 2 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 3

Contract (Professionally 
qualified), Permanent 4 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 8

Contract (Skilled 
technical), Permanent 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Contract (Semi-skilled), 
Permanent 2 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 6

Contract (Unskilled), 
Permanent 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

TOTAL 96 2 1 5 133 3 2 4 246

Table 3.6.3 Recruitment for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Occupational band Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Senior Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Professionally qualified 
and experienced 
specialists and mid-
management 4 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 6

Skilled technical 
and academically 
qualified workers, 
junior management, 
supervisors, foreman and 
superintendents 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Unskilled and defined 
decision making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Occupational band Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Total 5 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 7

Employees with 
disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 3.6.4 Promotions for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Occupational band Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Senior Management, 
Permanent 6 1 0 2 4 0 0 0 13

Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and 
mid-management, Permanent 29 0 1 1 19 1 0 2 53

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior management, 
supervisors, foremen, 
Permanent 7 0 0 0 23 1 0 1 32

Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making, Permanent 7 0 0 0 35 0 0 0 42

TOTAL 49 1 1 3 81 2 0 3 140

Employees with disabilities 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 4

Table 3.6.5 Terminations for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Occupational band Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Senior Management, 
Permanent 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and 
mid-management, Permanent 2 0 0 0 4 0 0 1 7

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior management, 
supervisors, foremen, 
Permanent 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making, Permanent 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Contract (Top Management), 
Permanent 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Contract (Semi-skilled), 
Permanent 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
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Occupational band Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Contract (Unskilled), 
Permanent 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 3

TOTAL 7 0 0 0 9 0 0 1 17

Employees with Disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Table 3.6.6 Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Disciplinary action Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Written warning 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Suspension 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

TOTAL 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2

Table 3.6.7 Skills development for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Occupational category Male Female Total

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Legislators, senior officials 
and managers

13 0 0 3 6 0 1 1 24

Professionals 39 2 1 1 20 0 0 0 63

Technicians and associate 
professionals

26 0 0 1 32 1 0 2   62

Clerks 22 0 0 0 64 1 1 2 90

Service and sales workers 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Skilled agriculture and fishery 
workers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades 
workers

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine operators 
and assemblers

3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Elementary occupations 4 0 0 0 11 0 0 0 15

Total 107 2 1 5 135 2 2 5 259

Employees with disabilities 5 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 8

3.7.	 Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS Members

All members of the SMS must conclude and sign performance agreements within specific 
timeframes. Information regarding the signing of performance agreements by SMS members, 
the reasons for not complying within the prescribed timeframes and disciplinary steps taken is 
presented here.
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Table 3.7.1 Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS members as on 31 May 2015

SMS Level Total number 
of funded SMS 
posts

Total number of  
SMS members

Total number 
of  signed 
performance 
agreements

Signed 
performance 
agreements as % 
of total number of 
SMS members

Director-General/ Head of 
Department

1 1 1 100

Salary Level 16 0 0 0 0

Salary Level 15 4 4 4 100

Salary Level 14 8 6 6 100

Salary Level 13 21 21 21 100

Total 34 32 32 100
Table 3.7.2 Reasons for not having concluded Performance agreements for all SMS 
members as on 31 May 2015

Reasons 

Not applicable

Table 3.7.3 Disciplinary steps taken against SMS members for not having concluded 
Performance agreements as on 31 May 2015

Reasons 

Not applicable

3.8.	 Performance Rewards

To encourage good performance, the department has granted the following performance rewards 
during the year under review. The information is presented in terms of race, gender, disability, salary 
bands and critical occupations (see definition in notes below).

Table 3.8.1 Performance Rewards by race, gender and disability for the period 1 April 
2015 to 31 March 2016

Race and Gender
Beneficiary Profile Cost

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total 
within group

Cost 
(R’000)

Average 
cost per 
employee

African

Male 18 93 19.4 1 383 76 833

Female 38 136 27.9 645 16 974
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Race and Gender
Beneficiary Profile Cost

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total 
within group

Cost 
(R’000)

Average 
cost per 
employee

Asian

Male 1 1 100 48 48 000

Female 0 2 0 0 0

Coloured

Male 0 1 0 0 0

Female 0 3 0 0 0

White

Male 2 4 50 136 68 000

Female 3 4 75 65 21 667

Employees with a disability 3 8 37.5 138 45 958

Total 62 246 25.2 2 277 36 726

Table 3.8.2 Performance Rewards by salary band for personnel below Senior 
Management Service for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 

Salary band
Beneficiary Profile Cost Total cost 

as a % of 
the total 
personnel 
expenditure

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total 
within 
salary 
bands

Total 
Cost 
(R’000)

Average 
cost per 
employee

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 26 59 44.1 274 10 538 0.2

Highly skilled 
production (Levels 
6-8) 10 55 18.2 179 17 900 0.1

Highly skilled 
supervision (Levels 
9-12) 21 87 24.1 775 36 905 0.6

Contract (Levels 1-2) 0 1 0 0 0 0

Contract (Levels 3-5) 0 6 0 0 0 0

Contract (Levels 6-8) 0 1 0 0 0 0

Contract (Levels 
9-12) 0 8 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 57 217 26.3 1 228 21 544 1
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Table 3.8.3 Performance Rewards by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 
March 2016

Critical occupation
Beneficiary Profile Cost

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total 
within 
occupation

Total Cost 
(R’000)

Average 
cost per 
employee

Administrative related 12 51 23.5 500 41 667

Cleaners in offices workshops 
hospitals etc. 6 11 54.5 52 8 667

Client inform clerks 
(Switchboard; Receptionist; 
Inform Clerk) 1 3 33.3 9 9 000

Communication and information 
related 1 22 4.5 21 21 000

Finance and economics related 2 14 14.3 91 45 500

Financial and related 
professionals 0 1 0 0 0

Financial clerks and credit 
controllers 10 22 45.5 207 20 700

Head of department/chief 
executive officer 1 0 0 377 377 000

Household food and laundry 
services related 0 1 0 0 0

Human resources & 
organisational development & 
related professional 0 3 0 0 0

Human resources clerks 1 7 14.3 12 12 000

Human resources related 2 17 11.8 82 41 000

Legal related 1 1 100 66 66 000

Library mail and related clerks 4 6 66.7 43 10 750

Messengers porters and 
deliverers 0 1 0 0 0

Motor vehicle drivers 2 3 66.7 19 9 500

Other administrative & related 
clerks and organisers 10 27 37 134 13 400

Other administrative policy and 
related officers 0 2 0 0 0

Other occupations 2 5 40 18 9 000

Rank: Unknown 0 1 0 0 0

Risk management and security 
services 0 1 0 0 0

Secretaries & other keyboard 
operating clerks 5 26 19.2 80 16 000
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Critical occupation
Beneficiary Profile Cost

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total 
within 
occupation

Total Cost 
(R’000)

Average 
cost per 
employee

Senior managers 2 21 9.5 566 283 000

TOTAL 62 246 25.2 2 277 36 726

Table 3.8.4 Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band for Senior 
Management Service for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Salary band
Beneficiary Profile Cost Total cost 

as a % of 
the total 
personnel 
expenditure

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total 
within 
salary 
bands

Total Cost 
(R’000)

Average 
cost per 

employee

Band A 2 23 8.7 124 62 000 0.5

Band B 1 5 20 86 86 000 0.9

Band C 1 4 25 481 481 000 6.7

Band D 1 1 100 377 377 000 9.9

Total 5 33 15.2 1 068 213 600 2.4

3.9.	 Foreign Workers

The tables below summarise the employment of foreign nationals in the department in terms of salary 
band and major occupation. 

Table 3.9.1 foreign workers by salary band for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Salary band 01 April 2015 31 March 2016 Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % Change

Lower skilled 0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled production 
(Lev. 6-8) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled 
supervision (Lev. 9-12) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract  (level 9-12) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract  (level 13-16) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Table 3.9.2 foreign workers by major occupation for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 
2016

Major occupation 01 April 2015 31 March 2016 Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % Change

Lower skilled 0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled 
production (Lev. 6-8) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled 
supervision (Lev. 9-12) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract  (level 9-12) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract  (level 13-16) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0

3.10.	 Leave utilisation 

The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the 
public service. The following tables provide an indication of the use of sick leave and disability 
leave. In both cases, the estimated cost of the leave is also provided.

Table 3.10.1 Sick leave for the period 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015
Salary band Total 

days
% Days 
with 
Medical 
certification

Number of 
Employees 
using sick 
leave

% of total 
employees 
using sick 
leave

Average 
days per 
employee

Estimated 
Cost 
(R’000)

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 380 89.2 43 26.1 9 256

Highly skilled production (Levels 
6-8) 299 87.3 38 23 8 347

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 
9-12) 418 83 62 37.6 7 811

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 114 87.7 16 9.7 7 389

Contract (Levels 1-2) 2 0 1 0.6 2 0

Contract (Levels 3-5) 7 100 1 0.6 7 3

Contract (Levels 6-8) 4 100 1 0.6 4 4

Contract (Levels 9-12) 4 100 1 0.6 4 9

Contract (Levels 13-16) 21 90.5 2 1.2 11 87

TOTAL 1 249 86.5 165 100 8 1 906
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Table 3.10.2 Disability leaves (temporary and permanent) for the period 1 January 2015 to 
31 December 2015

Salary band Total 
days

% Days 
with 

Medical 
certification

Number of 
Employees 

using 
disability 

leave

% of total 
employees 

using 
disability 

leave

Average 
days per 
employee

Estimated 
Cost 

(R’000)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled production (Levels 
6-8) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Senior management (Levels 13-
16) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0

The table below summarises the utilisation of annual leave. The wage agreement concluded with 
trade unions in the PSCBC in 2000 requires management of annual leave to prevent high levels 
of accrued leave being paid at the time of termination of service.

Table 3.10.3 Annual Leave for the period 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015
Salary band Total days taken Number of Employees 

using annual leave
Average per 
employee

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 1 361 61 22

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 1 237 55 22

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 2 203 98 22

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 729 31 24

Contract (Levels 1-2) 20 2 10

Contract (Levels 3-5) 58 5 12

Contract (Levels 9-12) 29 3 10

Contract (Levels 13-16) 70 6 12

TOTAL 5 707 261 22
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Table 3.10.4 Capped leave for the period 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015
Salary band Total days of 

capped leave 
taken

Number of 
Employees 
using capped 
leave

Average number 
of days taken 
per employee

Average capped 
leave per employee 
as on 31 March 2016

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0

Skilled Levels 3-5) 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled 
supervision(Levels 9-12) 0 0 0 0

Senior management 
(Levels 13-16) 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0

The following table summarises payments made to employees as a result of leave that was not 
taken.

Table 3.10.5 Leave pay-outs for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2015
Reason Total amount 

(R’000)
Number of 
employees

Average per 
employee 
(R’000)

Leave pay-out for 2015/16 due to non-utilisation of 
leave for the previous cycle 1 808 4 452 

Capped leave pay-outs on termination of service for 
2015/16 6 723 12 560

Current leave pay-out on termination of service for 
2015/16 299 6 50

TOTAL 8 830 22 401 

3.11.	 HIV/AIDS & Health Promotion Programmes

Table 3.11.1 Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Units/categories of employees identified to be at high risk of contracting HIV 
& related diseases (if any) 

Key steps taken to reduce 
the risk 

None None
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Table 3.11.2 Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes (tick the applicable 
boxes and provide the required information)

Question Yes No Details, if yes

1.Has the Department 
designated a member of the 
SMS to implement the provisions 
contained in Part VI E of 
Chapter 1 of the Public Service 
Regulations, 2001? If so, provide 
her/his name and position.

YES Mr. MG Matjele - Senior Manager: Transversal Human 
Resource Management. It must be noted that the designated 
official has left the Office of the Premier with effect from 1 
April 2016.  

2. Does the Department have 
a dedicated unit or has it 
designated specific staff members 
to promote the health and well-
being of your employees? If so, 
indicate the number of employees 
who are involved in this task 
and the annual budget that is 
available for this purpose.  

YES The Division: Transversal Human Resource Management 
Services has been entrusted with the responsibility of 
implementing the programme within the Office of the 
Premier and Co-ordinating the Programme implementation 
including HCT campaigns across the Mpumalanga Provincial 
Government. 
The team has five staff members who facilitate the 
implementation of the Employee Health and Wellness 
(EH&W) Strategic Plan and Occupational Health and 
Safety Plan to ensure the employee wellness, safety in the 
workplace and co-ordination of the services of Employee 
Health and Wellness across Departments within the 
Provincial Government in accordance with the relevant 
prescripts. There is however no budget specifically allocated 
for EH&W. 

3. Has the Department introduced 
an Employee Assistance or 
Health Promotion Programme for 
your employees? If so, indicate 
the key elements/services of this 
Programme. 

YES Financial Management, Stress management, Home Visits, 
Health Screening, Physical Activities, Pre-Counselling 
HIV Counselling and Testing. The Key elements of the 
Programme are: HIV&AIDS and TB management and 
mitigation; Prevention; Treatment; Care and Support; 
Wellness management; Safety Health Environment Risk and 
Quality Management; and Health Productivity Management in 
compliance with the National Policy Framework on Employee 
Health and Wellness. 

4. Has the Department 
established (a) committee(s) 
as contemplated in Part VI E.5 
(e) of Chapter 1 of the Public 
Service Regulations, 2001? If 
so, please provide the names of 
the members of the committee 
and the stakeholder(s) that they 
represent.  

YES The Office of the Premier co-ordinates the functioning of 
the Inter-Departmental Committee on EHW. There are 
measures in place to protect  the infected and affected from 
discrimination which include the following:
- Mainstreaming of HIV&AIDS  in all HRM functions and 
practices within the workplace;
- Awareness campaigns and peer education on rights of the 
affected and the infected;
- Adherence to Chapter 2 of the Constitution, 1996
- Monitoring by all key stakeholders to ensure compliance 
with all prescripts and the Constitution, 1996;
- Commemorations and information sharing sessions on the 
prevalence and the causes thereof;
- HIV & AIDS and TB policies;
- Identification of environmental risk factors; and
-Employee Assistant Programme and support.
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Question Yes No Details, if yes

5. Has the Department reviewed 
its employment policies and 
practices to ensure that these 
do not unfairly discriminate 
against employees on the basis 
of their HIV status? If so, list the 
employment policies/practices so 
reviewed.  

YES The Office of the Premier has reviewed its HIV/AIDS and 
TB Management Policy Framework, Wellness Management 
Policy and Bereavement policies. They are all awaiting 
approval by the Accounting Officer.

6. Has the Department introduced 
measures to protect HIV-
positive employees or those 
perceived to be HIV-positive from 
discrimination? If so, list the key 
elements of these measures. 

YES The Office of the Premier ensures that during its quarterly 
employee health and wellness programmes, it provides 
training on condom usage and condom distribution. In 
addition, there are policies in place that can be used as 
educational tools on important issues relating to HIV/AIDS.

7. Does the Department 
encourage its employees to 
undergo Voluntary Counselling 
and Testing? If so, list the results 
that you have you achieved. 

YES Only 25% of employees got tested in the previous Financial 
Year, i.e. employees on salary levels 3-12. During every 
Health and Wellness promotion event, employees are 
provided the opportunity to undergo voluntarily counselling 
and testing including General and Physical Health 
assessment. To date 74 Officials in the Office of the Premier 
have undergone VCT. 

8. Has the Department developed 
measures/indicators to monitor & 
evaluate the impact of its health 
promotion programme? If so, list 
these measures/indicators.

YES There are several Policies in place to guide the 
implementation of EH&W and the conduct of employees. 
Quarterly Sick leave utilization profile; Reduction in 
absenteeism; behaviour and lifestyle modification; the levels 
of compliance to treatment and healthy lifestyles; and the 
improved level of attendance to EH&W programmes and 
HCT campaigns.
The Annual Performance Plans that talks to the four 
(4) Pillars, Implementation and Operation of the EH&W 
Management system and EH&W evaluation, corrective 
and preventative action makes provision for the effective 
monitoring and evaluation of the EH&W Programme. 

3.12.	 Labour Relations

Table 3.12.1 Collective agreements for the period 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

Total number of Collective agreements None

The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the Office of 
the Premier for the year under review.
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Table 3.12.2 Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised for the period 1 April 2015 to 
31 March 2016

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of total

Correctional counselling 0 0

Verbal warning 0 0

Written warning 1 100

Final written warning 0 0

Suspended without pay 1 100

Fine 0 0

Demotion 0 0

Dismissal 0 0

Not guilty 0 0

Case withdrawn 0 0

Total 2 100

Table 3.12.3 Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings for the period 1 
April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Type of misconduct	 Number % of total

Procurement without following the correct procedures 1 100

Participating in remunerative work outside without permission 1 100

Total 2 100

Table 3.12.4 Grievances lodged for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Grievances Number % of Total

Number of grievances resolved 5 100

Number of grievances not resolved 0 0

Total number of grievances lodged 5 100

Table 3.12.5 Disputes lodged with Councils for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Disputes Number % of Total

Number of disputes upheld 0 0

Number of disputes dismissed 0 0

Total number of disputes lodged 0 0
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Table 3.12.6 Strike actions for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Total number of working days lost                                                                                      0

Total costs working days lost                                                                                                                                           0

Amount recovered as a result of no work no pay (R’000) 0

Table 3.12.7 Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Number of people suspended 0

Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 0

Average number of days suspended 0

Cost of suspension(R’000) 0

3.13.	 Skills development

This section highlights the efforts of the department with regard to skills development. 

Table 3.13.1 Training needs identified for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 

Occupational 
category

Gender Number of 
employees 
as at 1 April 
2015

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships / 
Internships

Skills Programmes & 
other short courses

Other 
forms of 
training

Total

Legislators, 
senior officials 
and managers

Female

8 0

Women Empowerment 
Conference; Diversity 
Management; Code of 
Conduct; PMDS; Excel 
programme; Code of 
Conduct;
Diversity management; 
Induction Programme for 
Executive Support Staff; 
CIP Level 1 - 12; and 
Fire Marshal Course -

24

Male

16 0

Diversity Management; 
Code of Conduct; PMDS; 
Excel programme; Code 
of Conduct;
Diversity management; 
Induction Programme for 
Executive Support Staff; 
CIP Level 1 - 12; and 
Fire Marshal Course -
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Occupational 
category

Gender Number of 
employees 
as at 1 April 
2015

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships / 
Internships

Skills Programmes & 
other short courses

Other 
forms of 
training

Total

Professionals Female

20 0

Auditing Governance, 
Strategy, Ethics and Risk 
Management;
Research Development 
Programme
Supply chain 
management; Women 
Empowerment 
Conference; Diversity 
Management; Code of 
Conduct; PMDS; Excel 
programme; Code of 
Conduct;
Diversity management; 
Induction Programme for 
Executive Support Staff; 
CIP Level 1 -12; and Fire 
Marshal Course -

63

Male

43 0

Auditing Governance, 
Strategy, Ethics and Risk 
Management;
Research Development 
Programme
Supply chain 
management; Diversity 
Management; Code of 
Conduct; PMDS; Excel 
programme; Code of 
Conduct;
Diversity management; 
Induction Programme for 
Executive Support Staff; 
CIP Level 1 -12; and Fire 
Marshal Course

-
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Occupational 
category

Gender Number of 
employees 
as at 1 April 
2015

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships / 
Internships

Skills Programmes & 
other short courses

Other 
forms of 
training

Total

Technicians 
and associate 
professionals

Female

35 0

Auditing Governance, 
Strategy, Ethics and Risk 
Management;
Research Development 
Programme;
Supply chain 
management; Women 
Empowerment 
Conference; Diversity 
Management; Code of 
Conduct; PMDS; Excel 
programme; Code of 
Conduct;
Diversity management; 
Induction Programme for 
Executive Support Staff; 
CIP Level 1 - 12; and 
Fire Marshal Course -

62

Male

27 0

Auditing Governance, 
Strategy, Ethics and Risk 
Management;
Research Development 
Programme;
Supply chain 
management; Diversity 
Management; Code of 
Conduct; PMDS; Excel 
programme; Code of 
Conduct;
Diversity management; 
Induction Programme for 
Executive Support Staff; 
CIP Level 1 - 12; and 
Fire Marshal Course -
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Occupational 
category

Gender Number of 
employees 
as at 1 April 
2015

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships / 
Internships

Skills Programmes & 
other short courses

Other 
forms of 
training

Total

Clerks Female

68 6

Women Empowerment 
Conference;
Supply chain 
management; Diversity 
Management; Code 
of Conduct; PMDS; 
Excel programme; 
Code of Conduct; 
CIP Level 1 - 12; and 
Induction Programme for 
Executive Support Staff -

102

Male

22 6

Supply chain 
management; Diversity 
Management; Code 
of Conduct; PMDS; 
Excel programme; 
Code of Conduct; 
CIP Level 1 - 12; and 
Induction Programme for 
Executive Support Staff

-

Service and 
sales workers

Female

2 0

Women Empowerment 
Conference;
Supply chain 
management; Diversity 
Management; Code of 
Conduct; PMDS; Excel 
programme; Code of 
Conduct; and CIP Level 
1 - 12 -

2Male 0 0 - -

Skilled 
agriculture and 
fishery workers

Female 0 0 - -

0Male 0 0 - -

Craft and 
related trades 
workers

Female 0 0 - -

0Male 0 0 - -

Plant and 
machine 
operators and 
assemblers

Female 0 0 - -

3

Male

3 0

Supply chain 
management; Code of 
Conduct; PMDS; Excel 
programme; Code of 
Conduct; and CIP Level 
1 - 12 -

Elementary 
occupations

Female
11 0

Code of Conduct; and 
PMDS; -

15
Male

4 0
Code of Conduct; and 
PMDS -
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Occupational 
category

Gender Number of 
employees 
as at 1 April 
2015

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships / 
Internships

Skills Programmes & 
other short courses

Other 
forms of 
training

Total

Sub Total Female 144 6 - - 150

Male 115 6 - - 121

Total 259 12 - - 271

Table 3.13.2 Training provided for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Occupational 
category

Gender Number of 
employees 
as at 1 April 
2015

Training provided within the reporting period
Learnerships Skills Programmes & other 

short courses
Other 
forms of 
training

Total

Legislators, 
senior officials 
and managers

Female

8 0

Women Empowerment 
Conference; Diversity 
Management; Code of 
Conduct; PMDS; Excel 
programme; Code of 
Conduct;
Diversity management; 
Induction Programme for 
Executive Support Staff; 
CIP Level 1 - 12; and Fire 
Marshal Course - 24

Male

16 0

Diversity Management; 
Code of Conduct; PMDS; 
Excel programme; Code of 
Conduct;
Diversity management; 
Induction Programme; for 
Executive Support Staff; 
CIP Level 1 - 12; and Fire 
Marshal Course -
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Occupational 
category

Gender Number of 
employees 
as at 1 April 
2015

Training provided within the reporting period
Learnerships Skills Programmes & other 

short courses
Other 
forms of 
training

Total

Professionals Female

20 0

Auditing Governance, 
Strategy, Ethics and Risk 
Management;
Research Development 
Programme
Supply chain management; 
Women Empowerment 
Conference; Diversity 
Management; Code of 
Conduct; PMDS; Excel 
programme; Code of 
Conduct;
Diversity management; 
Induction Programme for 
Executive Support Staff; CIP 
Level 1 -12; and Fire Marshal 
Course - 63

Male

43 0

Auditing Governance, 
Strategy, Ethics and Risk 
Management;
Research Development 
Programme
Supply chain management; 
Diversity Management; 
Code of Conduct; PMDS; 
Excel programme; Code of 
Conduct;
Diversity management; 
Induction Programme for 
Executive Support Staff; 
CIP Level 1 - 12; and Fire 
Marshal Course

-
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Occupational 
category

Gender Number of 
employees 
as at 1 April 
2015

Training provided within the reporting period
Learnerships Skills Programmes & other 

short courses
Other 
forms of 
training

Total

Technicians 
and associate 
professionals

Female

35 0

Auditing Governance, 
Strategy, Ethics and Risk 
Management;
Research Development 
Programme;
Supply chain management; 
Women Empowerment 
Conference; Diversity 
Management; Code of 
Conduct; PMDS; Excel 
programme; Code of 
Conduct;
Diversity management; 
Induction Programme for 
Executive Support Staff; 
CIP Level 1 - 12; and Fire 
Marshal Course - 62

Male

27 0

Auditing Governance, 
Strategy, Ethics and Risk 
Management;
Research Development 
Programme
Supply chain management; 
Diversity Management; 
Code of Conduct; PMDS; 
Excel programme; Code of 
Conduct;
Diversity management; 
Induction Programme for 
Executive Support Staff; 
CIP Level 1 - 12; and Fire 
Marshal Course -

Clerks Female

68 6

Women Empowerment 
Conference;
Supply chain management; 
Diversity Management; 
Code of Conduct; PMDS; 
Excel programme; Code of 
Conduct; CIP Level 1 - 12; 
and Induction Programme for 
Executive Support Staff - 102

Male

22 6

Supply chain management; 
Diversity Management; 
Code of Conduct; PMDS; 
Excel programme; Code of 
Conduct; CIP Level 1 - 12; 
and Induction Programme for 
Executive Support Staff

-
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Occupational 
category

Gender Number of 
employees 
as at 1 April 
2015

Training provided within the reporting period
Learnerships Skills Programmes & other 

short courses
Other 
forms of 
training

Total

Service and 
sales workers

Female

2 0

Women Empowerment 
Conference;
Supply chain management; 
Diversity Management; 
Code of Conduct; PMDS; 
Excel programme; Code of 
Conduct; and CIP Level 1 - 
12 - 2

Male 0 0 - -
Skilled 
agriculture and 
fishery workers

Female 0 0 - - 0
Male

0 0 - -
Craft and related 
trades workers

Female 0 0 - - 0
Male 0 0 - -

Plant and 
machine 
operators and 
assemblers

Female 0 0 - - 3
Male

3 0

Supply chain management; 
Code of Conduct; PMDS; 
Excel programme; Code of 
Conduct; and CIP Level 1 -12 -

Elementary 
occupations

Female
11 0

Code of Conduct; and 
PMDS; - 15

Male 4 0 Code of Conduct; and PMDS -
Sub Total Female 144 6 - - 150

Male 115 6 - - 121
Total 259 12 - - 271

3.14.	 Injury on Duty

The following tables provide basic information on injury on duty.

Table 3.14.1 Injury on duty for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016
Nature of injury on duty Number % of total

Required basic medical attention only 0 0

Temporary Total Disablement 0 0

Permanent Disablement 0 0

Fatal 0 0

Total 0 0
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3.15.	 Utilization of Consultants (confirm if it applies to HR only or the Office)

Table 3.15.1 Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds for the period 
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Project title Total number of consultants 
that worked on project

Duration
(work 
days)

Contract value in
Rand

0 0 0 0

Total number of projects Total individual consultants Total 
duration
Work days

Total contract value in 
Rand

0 0 0 0

Table 3.15.2 Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds, in terms of 
Historically Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs) for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Project title Percentage ownership 
by HDI groups

Percentage 
management by HDI 
groups

Number of consultants 
from HDI groups that 
work on the project

0 0 0 0

Table 3.15.3 Report on consultant appointments using Donor funds for the period 1 April 
2015 to 31 March 2016

Project title Total Number of 
consultants that worked 
on project

Duration
(Work 
days)

Donor and contract value 
in Rand

0 0 0 0

Total number of projects Total individual 
consultants

Total 
duration
Work days

Total contract value in 
Rand

0 0 0 0

Table 3.15.4 Analysis of consultant appointments using Donor funds, in terms of 
Historically Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs) for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016

Project title Percentage ownership 
by HDI groups

Percentage 
management by HDI 
groups

Number of consultants 
from HDI groups that 
work on the project

0 0 0 0
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3.16.	 Severance Packages

Table 3.16.1 Granting of employee initiated severance packages for the period 1 April 2015 
to 31 March 2016

Salary band Number of 
applications 
received

Number of 
applications 
referred to the 
MPSA

Number of 
applications 
supported by 
MPSA

Number of 
packages 
approved by 
Office of the 
Premier

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0

Skilled Levels 3-5) 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled 
supervision(Levels 9-12) 0 0 0 0

Senior management (Levels 
13-16) 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0
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Mpumalanga Premier David Mabuza with General Pedro Mutindi of  Cuando Cubango 
province, Angola, exchange signed MoUs of  cooperation between the two provinces.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE MPUMALANGA PROVINCIAL 
LEGISLATURE ON VOTE NO. 1: OFFICE OF THE PREMIER  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Report on the financial statements

Introduction
1.	 I have audited the financial statements of the Office of the Premier set out on pages 153 to 232, 

which comprise the appropriation statement, the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, 
the statement of financial performance and cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well 
as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

Accounting Officer’s responsibility for financial statements
2.	 The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance 

with the Modified Cash Standard (MCS) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management 
Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and the Division of Revenue Act of South 
Africa, 2015 (Act No. 1 of 2015) (DoRA), and for such internal control as the accounting officer  
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility
3.	 My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I 

conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards 
require that I comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4.	 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation  of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of financial statements. 

5.	 I believe the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion.

Opinion  

6.	 In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Office of the Premier as at 31 March 2016 and its financial performance and cash flows for the 
year then ended, in accordance with the Modified Cash Basis and the requirements of the PFMA 
and DoRA.

Emphasis of matter 
7.	 I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE MPUMALANGA PROVINCIAL 
LEGISLATURE ON VOTE NO. 1: OFFICE OF THE PREMIER  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Restatement of corresponding figures 
8.	 As disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2015 

have been restated as a result of an error discovered during the year ended 31 March 2016 in the 
financial statements of the Office of the Premier at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2015.

Additional matter  
9.	 I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Unaudited supplementary information 
10.	 The supplementary information set out on pages 226 to 232 does not form part of the financial 

statements and is presented as additional information. I have not audited this schedule and, 
accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
11.	 In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the 

general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report findings on the reported 
performance information against predetermined objectives for selected programmes presented in 
the annual performance report, compliance with legislation and internal control. I performed tests 
to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading but not to gather evidence to 
express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on 
these matters.

Predetermined objectives
12.	 I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported 

performance information for the following selected programmes presented in the annual 
performance report of the department for the year ended 31 March 2016:
•	 Programme 1: administration on pages 35 to 47

•	 Programme 2: institutional development on pages 48 to 65

•	 Programme 3: policy and governance, on pages 66 to 81

13.	 I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was 
presented in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the 
reported performance was consistent with the planned programmes. I further performed tests to 
determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time 
bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s Framework for Managing Programme 
Performance Information (FMPPI).

14.	 I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, 
accurate and complete.

15.	 I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information for the following programmes:



151

ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2015/2016 FINANCIAL YEAR VOTE 1:  OFFICE OF THE PREMIER MPUMALANGA PROVINCE 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE MPUMALANGA PROVINCIAL 
LEGISLATURE ON VOTE NO. 1: OFFICE OF THE PREMIER  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

•	 Programme 1: administration 

•	 Programme 2: institutional development 

•	 Programme 3: policy and governance

Additional matter 
16.	 I draw attention to the following matter : Although I raised no material findings on the usefulness and 

reliability of the reported performance information for the selected programmes, I draw attention to 
the following matter :

Achievement of planned targets
17.	 Refer to the annual performance report on pages 30 to 82 for information on the achievement of the 

planned targets for the year. 

Compliance with legislation
18.	 I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the Office of the Premier had complied with 

applicable legislation regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. 
My material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the general 
notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows:

Annual financial statements, performance report and annual report
19.	The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed 

financial reporting framework and supported by full and proper records as required by section 40(1) 
(a) and (b) of the Public Finance Management Act. Material misstatements of non-current assets and 
disclosure items identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statement were subsequently 
corrected and the supporting records were provided subsequently, resulting in the financial 
statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.

Procurement and contract management
20.	 Goods and services of a transaction value above R500 000 were procured without inviting 

competitive bids, as required by Treasury Regulations 16A6.1. Deviations were approved by the 
accounting officer even though it was not impractical to invite competitive bids, in contravention of 
Treasury Regulation 16A6.4.

21.	 Goods and services with a transaction value below R500 000 were procured without obtaining the 
required price quotations, as required by Treasury Regulation 16A6.1.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE MPUMALANGA PROVINCIAL 
LEGISLATURE ON VOTE NO. 1: OFFICE OF THE PREMIER  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Expenditure management
22.	 Effective steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure, amounting to R54 690 000 as 

disclosed in note 23 of the AFS, as required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the Public Finance 

     Management Act and Treasury Regulation 9.1.1.

23.	 Effective steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure, amounting to R5 083 
000 as disclosed in note 24 of the AFS, as required by section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the Public Finance 
Management Act and Treasury Regulation 9.1.1.

24.	 Effective internal controls were not in place for payment approval and processing, as required by 
Treasury Regulation 8.1.1. Payments were approved without adequate supporting documents for 
the expenditure amount.

Internal control 
25.	 I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance 

report and compliance with legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant 
internal control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on compliance with legislation included in 
this report.

Leadership
26.	There was insufficient oversight and monitoring on the implementation of internal controls during the 

year resulting in material misstatements identified in the financial statements being corrected as well 
as instances of irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure. 

27.	The leadership did not ensure that vacant senior management positions were filled within 12 months.

Financial and performance management
28.	Management did not ensure that the financial statements are adequately supported with 

documentation to validate recorded transactions.

29.	Supporting schedules submitted with the financial statements for auditing were not adequately 
reviewed for accuracy and completeness as there were errors noted during the audit.

30.	There were inadequate controls identified with regards to daily and monthly processing regarding 
expenditure and asset management.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE MPUMALANGA PROVINCIAL 
LEGISLATURE ON VOTE NO. 1: OFFICE OF THE PREMIER  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Governance
31.	As the audit committee was not in place for five months of the financial year, the audit committee did 

not review some processes of the internal audit function. 

Other reports
32.	 I draw attention to the following engagements that could potentially have an impact on the Office of 

the Premier’s financial, performance and compliance-related matters. My opinion is not modified in 
respect of these engagements that are in progress or have been completed.

Investigations
33.	 The public protector is performing an investigation into some of the irregular expenditure incurred 

during the 2013-14 financial years. At the date of this report, the outcome of investigation was not 
yet known.

 Mbombela

29 July 2016
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(MP: OFFICE OF THE PREMIER) 
VOTE 1  

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT 
for the year ended 31 March 2016

1.	 Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):

	 Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and subsidies, disclosure notes and 
Annexure 1 (A-H) to the Annual Financial Statements.

2.	 Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement):

	 Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial Statements.

3.	 Detail on payments for financial assets

	 Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the note on Payments for financial assets to the 
Annual Financial Statements.

4.	 Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after Virement): 

 4.1	  Per programme Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

Variance  
R’000

Variance as 
a % of Final 

Appropriation
Administration 124 284 124 043 241 0.19%
Institutional Development 85 458 84 968 490 0.56%
Policy and Governance 57 216 52 691 4 525 7.91%

4.2	 Per economic classification Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure

Variance Variance as 
a % of Final 

Appropriation
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Current payments
Compensation of employees 122 795 122 680 115 0.09%
Goods and services 124 507 115 947 5 092 4.09%
Transfers and subsidies
Provinces and municipalities 13 13 - 0.00%
Households 10 698 10 678 20 0.19%
Payments for capital assets
Machinery and equipment 7 140 7 111 29 0.32%
Software and other intangible assets 5 261 5 261 0 0.00%
Payments for financial assets 12 12 - 0.00%

The variance of R5 256 million can be attributed to the slow implementation of the Command Centre and non-
achievement of planned targets such as SMS summit and ICT Indaba
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(MP: OFFICE OF THE PREMIER) 
VOTE 1  

STATEMENT TO FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE  
for the year ended 31 March 2016

Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
REVENUE 

Annual appropriation 1 266 958 214 737

Statutory appropriation 2 - 2 083

Departmental revenue 3 175 841

Transfers received Donations 691 -

TOTAL REVENUE 267 824 217 661

EXPENDITURE 

Current expenditure
Compensation of employees 4 122 680 118 236

Goods and services 5 115 947 83 140

Interest and rent on land 6 - 892

Total current expenditure 238 627 202 268

Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies 8 10 691 8 516

Donations 691 -

Total transfers and subsidies 11 382 8 516

Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible assets 9 7 111 802

Intangible assets 26 5 261 -

Total expenditure for capital assets 12 372 802
Payments for financial assets 7 12 -

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 262 393 211 586

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)  FOR THE YEAR 5 431 6 075

Reconciliation of Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 

Voted funds 5 256 5 234

Annual appropriation 5 256 5 234

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts 13 175 841

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 5 431 6 075
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STATEMENT TO FINANCIAL POSITION  
for the year ended 31 March 2016

Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
ASSETS  

Current assets  5 797 5 982

Cash and cash equivalents 10 4 592 5 842

Receivables 11 1 205 140

  

Non-current assets  84 90

Receivables 11 84 90

  

TOTAL ASSETS 5 881 6 072

LIABILITIES 

Current liabilities  5 881 6 072

Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 12 5 256 5 234

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the 
Revenue Fund

13 91 147

Payables 14 534 691

  

Non-current liabilities  

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5 881 6 072

NET ASSETS - -
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT  
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Note 2015/16 2014/16

R’000 R’000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts 268 277 217 595
Annual appropriated funds received 1.1 266 958 214 737

Statutory appropriated funds received 2 - 2 083

Departmental revenue received 3 249 400

Interest received 3.2 379 375

Transfers received Donations 691 -

Net (increase)/decrease in working capital (1 216) 607

Surrendered to Revenue Fund (6 251) (1 071)

Current payments (238 627) (201 376)

Interest paid 6 - (892)

Payments for financial assets (12) -

Transfers and subsidies paid (11 382) (8 516)

Net cash flow available from operating activities 15 10 789 6 347

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for capital assets 9 (12 372) (802)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 3.3 333 66

Net cash flows from investing activities (12 039) (736)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1 250) 5 611

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 5 842 231

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 10 4 592 5 842
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for the year ended 31 March 2016

Summary of significant accounting policies 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which have been applied 
consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. Management has concluded that the financial 
statements present fairly the department’s primary and secondary information.  

The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise indicated.  Management has used 
assessments and estimates in preparing the annual financial statements.  These are based on the best information 
available at the time of preparation.

Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the 
financial statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), 
Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA and the 
annual Division of Revenue Act. 

1 Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash Standard.  
2 Going concern 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

3 Presentation currency

Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the functional 
currency of the department. 

4 Rounding 

Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand (R’000).

5 Foreign currency translation

 Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African Rands using the spot 
exchange rates prevailing at the date of payment / receipt.

6 Comparative information
6.1 Prior period comparative information 

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial statements.  Where 
necessary figures included in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to ensure that 
the format in which the information is presented is consistent with the format of the current year’s financial 
statements.
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6.2 Current year comparison with budget 

A comparison between the approved, final budget and actual amounts for each programme and economic 
classification is included in the appropriation statement.  

7 Revenue
7.1 Appropriated funds

Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations as well as direct charges against the revenue fund 
(i.e. statutory appropriation).

Appropriated funds are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the appropriation 
becomes effective.  Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments budget process are recognised in the 
statement of financial performance on the date the adjustments become effective.

The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is 
recognised as a payable / receivable in the statement of financial position.  

7.2 Departmental revenue 

Departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received and is 
subsequently paid into the relevant revenue fund, unless stated otherwise.

Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a payable in the 
statement of financial position. 

7.3 Accrued departmental revenue 

Accruals in respect of departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the notes to the financial 
statements when:

•	 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to 
the department; and

•	 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.

Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable from collecting 
agents.

8 Expenditure
8.1 Compensation of employees
8.1.1 Salaries and wages

Salaries and wages are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.  
8.1.2 Social contributions

Social contributions made by the department in respect of current employees are recognised in the statement 
of financial performance on the date of payment.  

Social contributions made by the department in respect of ex-employees are classified as transfers to 
households in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
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8.2 Other expenditure

Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments for capital assets) is 
recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.  The expense is classified as 
a capital expense if the total consideration paid is more than the capitalisation threshold.  

8.3 Accrued expenditure payable

Accrued expenditure payable is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the goods are received 
or, in the case of services, when they are rendered to the department or in the case of transfers and subsidies 
when they are due and payable.

Accrued expenditure payable is measured at cost.
8.4 Leases
8.4.1 Operating leases

Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current expenditure in the 
statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements. 
8.4.2 Finance leases 

Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital expenditure in the 
statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements and are not apportioned 
between the capital and interest portions.  

Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured at the lower of:

•	 cost, being the fair value of the asset; or

•	 the sum of the minimum lease payments made, including any payments made to acquire ownership at 
the end of the lease term, excluding interest.

9 Aid Assistance
9.1 Aid assistance received

Aid assistance received in cash is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received.  In-
kind aid assistance is recorded in the notes to the financial statements on the date of receipt and is measured 
at fair value.

Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any unutilised funds from aid assistance that are 
required to be refunded to the donor  are recognised as a payable in the statement of financial position.

9.2 Aid assistance paid

Aid assistance paid is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. Aid 
assistance payments made prior to the receipt of funds are recognised as a receivable in the statement of 
financial position.
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10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement of financial position.  

Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position as a current liability.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits 
held, other short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

11 Prepayments and advances

Prepayments and advances are recognised in the statement of financial position when the department 
receives or disburses the cash.  

Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost.

<Indicate when prepayments are expensed and under what circumstances.>
12 Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost plus accrued interest, 
where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.  Write-offs are made according to the 
department’s write-off policy.

13 Investments

Investments are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost.
14 Financial assets
14.1 Financial assets (not covered elsewhere)

A financial asset is recognised initially at its cost plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of the financial.

At the reporting date, a department shall measure its financial assets at cost, less amounts already settled or 
written-off, except for recognised loans and receivables, which are measured at cost plus accrued interest, 
where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.

14.2 Impairment of financial assets

Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset, an estimation of the reduction in the recorded 
carrying value, to reflect the best estimate of the amount of the future economic benefits expected to be 
received from that asset, is recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

15 Payables

Loans and payables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost.
16 Capital Assets
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16.1 Immovable capital assets

Immovable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost.  Immovable 
capital assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of 
acquisition.  

Where the cost of immovable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the immovable capital assets are 
measured at R1 unless the fair value of the asset has been reliably estimated, in which case the fair value 
is used.  

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at R1.

Immovable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of the capital 
project unless the immovable asset is recorded by another department in which case the completed project 
costs are transferred to that department.  

16.2 Movable capital assets

Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost.  Movable capital 
assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.  

Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the movable capital assets are 
measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the movable assets are measured at R1.  

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at R1.

Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.

Biological assets are subsequently carried at fair value

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of the capital 
project unless the movable asset is recorded by another department/entity in which case the completed 
project costs are transferred to that department.  

16.3 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost.  Intangible assets 
acquired through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.  

Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the 
department commences the development phase of the project.  

Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably, the intangible capital assets are measured 
at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the intangible assets are measured at R1.  

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be recorded at R1.

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end of the capital 
project unless the intangible asset is recorded by another department/entity in which case the completed 
project costs are transferred to that department.  

17 Provisions and Contingents
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17.1 Provisions

Provisions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a present legal or constructive 
obligation to forfeit economic benefits as a result of events in the past and it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. The provision is measured as the best estimate of the funds 
required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date.

17.2 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation 
that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence 
of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the department or when there is a present 
obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

17.3 Contingent assets

Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when a possible asset arises from 
past events, and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not within the control of the department.

17.4 Commitments 

Commitments are recorded at cost in the notes to the financial statements when there is a contractual 
arrangement or an approval by management in a manner that raises a valid expectation that the department 
will discharge its responsibilities thereby incurring future expenditure that will result in the outflow of cash.

18 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the statement of financial position until such time as the expenditure 
is either:

•	 approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with funding and the related funds are received; 
or

•	 approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature without funding and is written off against the 
appropriation in the statement of financial performance; or

•	 transferred to receivables for recovery.

Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised expenditure.

19 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed.  The 
amount recorded is equal to the total value of the fruitless and or wasteful expenditure incurred.  

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes to the financial statements when it is resolved 
or transferred to receivables for recovery.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable 
and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.
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20 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed.  The amount 
recorded is equal to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is impracticable to determine, in 
which case reasons therefor are provided in the note.  

Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant authority, transferred 
to receivables for recovery or not condoned and is not recoverable.   

Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable and are 
de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

21 Changes in accounting policies, accounting estimates and errors

Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have been applied retrospectively in 
accordance with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-
specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change in policy.  In such instances the department shall 
restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective 
restatement is practicable.

Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS requirements.

Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in accordance with 
MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the 
cumulative effect of the error.  In such cases the department shall restate the opening balances of assets, 
liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

22 Events after the reporting date

Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted for in the financial 
statements.  The events after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting events after the reporting 
date have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.  

23 Principal-Agent arrangements

The department is party to a principal-agent arrangement for [include details here].  In terms of the 
arrangement the department is the [principal / agent] and is responsible for [include details here].  All related 
revenues, expenditures, assets and liabilities have been recognised or recorded in terms of the relevant 
policies listed herein.  Additional disclosures have been provided in the notes to the financial statements 
where appropriate.  

24 Departures from the MCS requirements

[Insert information on the following:  that management has concluded that the financial statements present 
fairly the department’s primary and secondary information; that the department complied with the Standard 
except that it has departed from a particular requirement to achieve fair presentation; and the requirement 
from which the department has departed, the nature of the departure and the reason for departure.]
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25 Capitalisation reserve

The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities originating in a prior reporting period 
but which are recognised in the statement of financial position for the first time in the current reporting 
period.  Amounts are recognised in the capitalisation reserves when identified in the current period and are 
transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund when the underlying asset is disposed and the related 
funds are received.

26 Recoverable revenue

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial year becomes 
recoverable from a debtor in the current financial year.  Amounts are either transferred to the National/
Provincial Revenue Fund when recovered or are transferred to the statement of financial performance when 
written-off.

27 Related party transactions

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting entity 
and a related party. Related party transactions within the Minister’s portfolio are recorded in the notes to the 
financial statements when the transaction is not at arm’s length. 

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of the department. The number of individuals and their full compensation is 
recorded in the notes to the financial statements.

28 Inventories  (Effective from 1 April 2017)

At the date of acquisition, inventories are recorded at cost price in the notes to the financial statements

Where inventories are acquired as part of a non-exchange transaction, the cost of inventory is its fair value 
at the date of acquisition.

Inventories are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value or the lower of cost and 
current replacement value.
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1.	 Annual Appropriation 

1.1 	 Annual Appropriation

Included are funds appropriated in terms of the Appropriation Act (and the Adjustments Appropriation Act) for National 
Departments (Voted funds) and Provincial Departments:

2015/16 2014/15
Final 

Appropriation
Actual Funds 

Received
Funds not 
requested/

not received

Final 
Appropriation

Appropriation 
received

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Administration 124 284 124 284 - 97 497 97 497

Institutional 
Development

85 458 85 458 - 74 688 74 688

Policy and 
Governance

  57 216   57  216 - 42 552 42 552

Total 266 958 266 958 - 214 737 214 737

2.	 Statutory Appropriation 

2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Statutory Appropriation - -

Total - 2 083

Actual Statutory Appropriation received - 2 083

3.	 Departmental revenue 

Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 3.1 185 208

Interest, dividends and rent on land 3.2 379 375

Sales of capital assets 3.3 333 66

Transactions in financial assets and liabilities 3.4 64 167

Donations 3.5 - 25

Total revenue collected 961 841
Less: Own revenue included in appropriation 786 -
 Departmental revenue collected 175 841
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3.1	 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets

Note 2015/16 2014/15
3 R’000 R’000

Sales of goods and services produced by the department 185 208

Sales by market establishment 185 208

Total 185 208

3.2	 Interest, dividends and rent on land 

Note 2015/16 2014/15
3 R’000 R’000

Interest 379 375

Total 379 375

3.3	 Sale of capital assets

Note 2015/16 2014/15
3 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 333 66

Machinery and equipment 24 333 66

Total 333 66

3.4	 Transactions in financial assets and liabilities

Note 2015/16 2014/15
3 R’000 R’000

Receivables - 12

Other Receipts including Recoverable Revenue 64 155

Total 64 167

3.5	 Donations

Note 2015/16 2014/15
3 R’000 R’000

Transfer received - 25

Total - 25
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4.	 Compensation of employees

4.1       Salaries and wages

Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Basic salary 81 905 79 789

Performance award 2 309 1 102

Service Based 158 357

Compensative/circumstantial 2 856 3 045

Other non-pensionable allowances 19 716 19 315

Total 106 944 103 608

Other non-pensionable allowances comprises of Capital remuneration, Housing allowances and Service Bonus.

4.2     Social contributions
Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Employer contributions
Pension 10 851 10 463

Medical 4 867 4 148

Bargaining council 18 17

Total 15 736 14 628

Total compensation of employees 122 680 118 236

Average number of employees 246 260
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5.	 Goods and services 

Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000

Administrative fees 2 411 1 788

Advertising 5 257 1 876

Minor assets 5.1 111 139

Catering 1 866 7 156

Communication 3 359 3 687

Computer services 5.2 1 260 915

Consultants: Business and advisory services 58 291 28 435

Legal services 345 2 001

Contractors 161 438

Audit cost – external 5.3 3 916 3 781

Fleet services 2 480 2 170

Consumables 5.4 2 475 2 611

Operating leases 604 90

Property payments 5.5 5 274 3 766

Rental and hiring 121 215

Transport provided as part of the departmental activities 1 924 2 632

Travel and subsistence 5.6 17 598 13 573

Venues and facilities 6 944 6 387

Training and development 706 684

Other operating expenditure 5.7. 844 796

Total 115 947 83 140

5.1      Minor assets

Note 2015/16 2014/15
5 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 111 139

Machinery and equipment 111 139

Total 111 139
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5.2      Computer services

Note 2015/16 2014/15
5 R’000 R’000

SITA computer services 492 536

External computer service providers 768 379

Total 1 260 915

5.3     Audit cost – External 
Note 2015/16 2014/15

5 R’000 R’000
Regularity audits 3 916 3 781
Total 3 916 3 781

	

5.4       Consumables

Note 2015/16 2014/15
5 R’000 R’000

Consumable supplies 607 885

Uniform and clothing 402 49

Household supplies 167 603

Building material and supplies - 58

Communication accessories - 1

IT consumables 22 -

Other consumables 16 174

Stationery, printing and office supplies 1 875 1 726
Total 2 475 2 611

Other consumables comprises of gifs and award.

5.5	 Property payments

Note 2015/16 2014/15
5 R’000 R’000

Municipal services 4 945 3 495

Other 329 271

Total 5 274 3 766

Other property payment comprises of cleaning services
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5.6        Travel and subsistence

Note 2015/16 2014/15
5 R’000 R’000

Local 16 839 13 086

Foreign 759 487

Total 17 598 13 573

5.7	 Other operating expenditure

Note 2015/16 2014/15
5 R’000 R’000

Professional bodies, membership and subscription fees 43 137

Resettlement costs 38 39

Other 763 620

Total 844 796

Other operating expenditure comprises of the following: a) Laundry services b) Courier and delivery 
services c) Printing and Publication d) Life Insurance

6.	 Interest and rent on land 

Note 2015/16 2014/15
6 R’000 R’000

Interest paid - 892

Total - 892

7.	 Payments for financial assets

Note 2015/16 2014/15
7 R’000 R’000

Debts written off 12 -

Total 12 -
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7.1      Debts written off

Note 2015/16 2014/15
7 R’000 R’000

Nature of debts written off
(Group major categories, but list material items: debts written off relating to irregular 
expenditure, recoverable expenditure and other debts must be listed here)

- -

Irregular expenditure written off - -

Total - -
Recoverable revenue written off - -

Total

Other debt written off 12 -

Total 12 -
Total debt written off 12 -

8.	 Transfers and subsidies

2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Note

Departmental agencies and accounts Annex 1B 13 388

Households Annex 1G 11 369 8 128

Total 11 382 8 516

9.	 Expenditure for capital assets 

Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Tangible assets 7 111 802
Machinery and Equipment 9 7 111 802

    802

-

Intangible assets 5 261 -
Software 5 261 -

Total 12 372 802
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
for the year ended 31 March 2016

9.1	 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2015/16

Voted funds Aid 
assistance

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000
Tangible assets 12 372 - 8 904

Machinery and equipment 12 372 - 8 904

Total      12 372 - 8 904

9.2    Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2014/15

Voted funds Aid 
assistance

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000
Tangible assets 802 - 802

Machinery and equipment 802 - 802

Total 802 - 802
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
for the year ended 31 March 2016

10.		 Cash and cash equivalents

Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Consolidated Paymaster General Account 4 592 5 842

Total 4 592 5 842

11.	  Receivables

2015/16 2014/15

Current Non-
current

Total Current Non-
current

Total

Note

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Claims recoverable 11.1 1 013 - 1 013 - - -

Recoverable expenditure 11.2 180 - 180 - 72 72
Staff debt 11.3 12 12 24 140 18 158
Other debtors 11.4 - 72 72 - - -
Total 1 205 84 1 289 140 90 230

11.1 Claims recoverable

Note 2015/16 2014/15
11 and Annex 4 R’000 R’000

Provincial departments 1 013 -

Total 1 013 -

11.2	 Recoverable expenditure (disallowance accounts)

(Group major categories, but list material items) Note 2015/16 2014/15
11 R’000 R’000

Sal income tax 176 -

Sal Medical Aid 4 -

Other debtors - 72

Total 180 72
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
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11.3	 Staff debt

(Group major categories, but list material items) Note 2015/16 2014/15
11 R’000 R’000

Employees 5 52

Ex-Employees 19 106

Total 24 158

11.4 Other debtors

(Group major categories, but list material items) Note 2015/16 2014/15
11 R’000 R’000

RA Moss 70 -

WM Theys 2 -

Total 72 -

12.	 Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Opening balance 5 234 319

Prior period error 12 -

As restated 5 234 319

Transfer from statement of financial performance (as restated) 5 256 5 234

Add Unauthorised Expenditure for current year

Paid during the year (5 234) (319)

Closing balance 5 256 5 234
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
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12.1 Prior period error

Note 2015/16

R’000
Nature of prior period error
Relating to 2015/16 [affecting the opening balance]

Transfer from the statement of financial performance (691)

Relating to 2014/15

Total prior period errors (691)

13.	 Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the   

         Revenue Fund

Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Opening balance 147 58

Prior period error -

As restated 147 58

Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance (as restated) 175 841

Own revenue included in appropriation 786 -

Paid during the year (1 017) (752)

Closing balance 91 147

14.	 Payables – current

Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000

Clearing accounts 14.1 5 -
Other payables 14.2 529 691

Total 534 691
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14.1   Clearing accounts

Note 2015/16 2014/15
14 R’000 R’000

Description

SAL: Bargaining Council 5 -

Total 5 -

14.2    Other payables

Note 2015/16 2014/15
14 R’000 R’000

Description

Capital contribution Other government units (amount of money still to be surrendered. 529 691

Total 529 691

15.	 Net cash flow available from operating activities

Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Net surplus/(deficit) as per Statement of Financial Performance 5 431 6 075

Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities (5 358) 272

(Increase)/decrease in receivables – current (1 059) 190

Increase/(decrease) in payables – current (157) 417

Proceeds from sale of capital assets (333) (66)

Expenditure on capital assets 12 372 802

Surrenders to Revenue Fund (6 251) (1 071)

Own revenue included in the appropriation 786 -

Net cash flow generated by operating activities 10 789 6 347
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16.	 Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes

Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Consolidated Paymaster General account 4 592 5 842

Total 4 592 5 842

17.	 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

17.1            Contingent liabilities

Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Liable to			   Nature
Claims against the department Annex 

3B
17 551 17 912

Intergovernmental payables (unconfirmed balances) Annex 
5

193 448

Total 17 744 18 360

Timing and amounts of outflow cannot be reasonably estimated as these are legal matters

The possibility of reimbursement will only be known with certainty at the conclusion of the case.

17.2   Contingent assets

Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Nature of contingent asset
Maureen Sithole 2 388 2 388
Total 2 388 2 388

The court ruling was in favour of Maureen Sithole for an amount of R2 387 573.2 but the Office of the 
Premier has launched an appeal against that ruling to the value of the disclosed amount.
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18.	 Commitments
Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Current expenditure
Approved and contracted 25 719 58 669

Approved but not yet contracted - -

Total Commitments 25 719 58 669

19.	 Accruals and payables not recognised

19.1        Accruals

2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Listed by economic classification

30 Days 30+ Days Total Total
Goods and services 4462 - 4 462 7 669

Capital Assets 764 764

Total         5 226 - 5 226 7 669

Note 2015/16 2014/15

Listed by programme level R’000 R’000
Goods and services- Administration 3 256 5 357

Goods and services-Institutional Development 1 675 1 595

Goods and services- Policy and administration 295 717

Total 5 226 7 669
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
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20.   Confirmed balances

2015/16 2014/15
Note

Included in the above totals are the following: R’000 R’000
Confirmed balances with other departments Annex 5 73 446

Total 73 446

21. Employee benefits

Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Leave entitlement 5 902 5 845

Service bonus (Thirteenth cheque) 3 033 2 984

Performance awards 2 277 1 051

Capped leave commitments 6 723 7 628

Other 316 71

Total 18 251 17 579

Accruals comprises of leave entitlement and service bonus

Provision comprises of performance awards, capped leave commitments and long term service 
awards.

Other comprises of long term service awards to be paid in the financial year 2016/17. 

The non-current portion benefit could not be reliable estimate by management because of high level of 
uncertainty and the complexity of the calculation.
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22	 Lease commitments

22.1	 Operating leases expenditure

2015/16

Specialised 
military 

equipment Land

Buildings 
and other 

fixed 
structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment Total
Not later than 1 year - - - 454 454
Later than 1 year and not later than 
5 years

- - - 491 491

Total lease commitments - - - 945 945

23	 Irregular expenditure

23.1        Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Opening balance 92 700 68 377

Prior period error -

As restated 92 700 68 377

Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to current year 54 690 24 323

Closing balance 147 390 92 700

Analysis of awaiting condonation per age classification
Current year 54 690 24 323

Prior years 92 700 68 377

Total 147 390 92 700
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23.2   Details of irregular expenditure – current year

Incident Disciplinary 
steps taken/
criminal 
proceedings

2015/16

R’000

Non-compliance with Supply Chain Management policies Under 
investigation

3 500

Non-compliance with Supply Chain policies Under 
investigation

6 498

Non-compliance with Supply Chain policies Under 
investigation

4 470

Non-compliance with Supply Chain policies Under 
investigation

27 102

Non-compliance with Supply Chain policies

Non compliance with Supply Chain Management policies-under Investigation

Blue Flame

Travel Today

Under 
investigation

1 719

3 800

974

11

Vakasha Travel
Lowvelder
Thamini
Mpho Stationery
Neo De Bravo
Juta
Benea Technologies
Uxhumano Communications
Adiomart

Deviations below R500 000
Deviations above R500 000

Total

4 203
29

269
30

200
12
73

165
133
464

1038

____________

54 690 
____________
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24. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

24.1           Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Note 2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Opening balance - -

Prior period error -

As restated - -

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – relating to current year 5 083 -

Closing balance 5 083 -

Analysis of awaiting condonation per age classification
Current year 5 083 -

Prior years - -

Total 5 083 -

Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure – current year

Incident Disciplinary steps 
taken/criminal 
proceedings

2015/16

R’000
Amount charged for services not received					            			   3 824

Proof of additional work not provided						                965

Constructed work not supported						                         294

__________

Total										          5083 
__________
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25. Related Party Relationships

List related party relationships 

All departments under the common control of the Mpumalanga Provincial Legislature are related parties. 

During the year under review the Office of the Premier received free accommodation services free of charge from 
the Department of Public Works, roads and Transport which is a related party for the year under review to the 
Office due to being under the common control of the Mpumalanga Provincial Legislature.

Pursuant to a determination and approval by the Provincial Treasury, for the year under review, the Office of the 
Premier provide services for the Audit Committee and Internal Audit through the shared services in the Office of 
the Premier, to the following provincial cluster departments:- 

Department of Human Settlements;

Department of Culture, Sports & Recreation;

Department of Community Safety, Security and Liaison; and

Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs

The Department was responsible for funding the operations of the shared services, however, the services were 
provided free of charge to the above mentioned cluster departments.

The Office receives IT services from the Department of Finance free of charge. 

26. Key management personnel

No. of 
Individuals

2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000
Political office bearers (provide detail below) 1 2 173 2 082

Officials:

Level 15 to 16 5 7 332 6 731

Level 14 (incl. CFO if at a lower level) 10 8 287 8 172

Family members of key management personnel 1 236 159

Total 18 028 17 144
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27.     Movable Tangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 
MARCH 2016

Opening 
balance

Value 
adjustments

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 32 336 - 8 102 2 618 37 583
Transport assets 11 622 (237) - 1 709 9 676
Computer equipment 11 349 - 2 282 870 12 761
Furniture and office equipment 5 262 - 5 603 - 10 865
Other machinery and equipment 4 103 217 39 4 281
TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS 32 336 - 8 102 2 618          37 583

27.1 Additions
ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 
MARCH 2016

Cash Non-cash (Capital 
Work in 

Progress 
current 

costs and 
finance 
lease 

payments)

Received 
current, not 

paid

(Paid current 
year, received 

prior year)

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 7 111 - - 991 8 102
Computer equipment 1 518 - - 764 2 282
Furniture and office equipment 5 550 - - 53 5 603
Other machinery and equipment 43 - - 174 217
TOTAL ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE 
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

7 111 - - 991 8 102
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27.2 Disposals

DISPOSALS OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2016

Sold for 
cash

Non-cash 
disposal

Total 
disposals

Cash 
Received 

Actual
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 1 709 909 2 618 333
Transport assets 1 709 - 1 709 333
Computer equipment - 870 870 -
Other machinery and equipment - 39 39 -
TOTAL DISPOSAL OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS

1 709 909 2 618 333

27.3. 	Movement for 2014/15

MOVEMENT IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 
2015

Opening 
balance

Prior 
period 
error

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 32 009 (105) 792 360 32 336
Transport assets 11 901 - - 279 11 622
Computer equipment 10 962 8 460 81 11 349
Furniture and office equipment 5 089 (70) 243 - 5 262
Other machinery and equipment 4 057 (43) 89 - 4 103
TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS

32 009 (105) 792 360 32 336



ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2015/2016 FINANCIAL YEAR VOTE 1:  OFFICE OF THE PREMIER MPUMALANGA PROVINCE 

222

(MP: OFFICE OF THE PREMIER) 
VOTE 1  

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
for the year ended 31 March 2016

27.3.1    Prior period error
Note 2015/16

R’000
Nature of prior period error
Relating to 2015/16 [affecting the opening balance]

Computer Equipment 8

Furniture and Office Equipment (70)

Other machinery and equipment (43)

Relating to 2014/15

Total prior period errors (105)

Machinery and Equipment was understated in the prior year

27.4  Minor assets
MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

Specialised 
military 
assets

Intangible 
assets

Heritage 
assets

Machinery 
and 

equipment

Biological 
assets

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Opening balance - 2 - 5 720 - 5 722
Value adjustments - - - - - -
Additions - - - 216 - 216
Disposals - - - 86 - 86
TOTAL MINOR ASSETS - 2 - 5 850 - 5 852

Specialised 
military 
assets

Intangible 
assets

Heritage 
assets

Machinery 
and 

equipment

Biological 
assets

Total

Number of R1 minor 
assets

- - - 4 988 - 4 988

TOTAL NUMBER OF 
MINOR ASSETS

- - - 4 988 - 4 988
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MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

Specialised 
military 
assets

Intangible 
assets

Heritage 
assets

Machinery 
and 

equipment

Biological 
assets

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Opening balance - 2 - 5 571 - 5 573
Prior period error 25 25
Additions - - - 139 - 139
Disposals - - - 15 - 15
TOTAL MINOR ASSETS - 2 - 5 720 - 5 722

Specialised 
military 
assets

Intangible 
assets

Heritage 
assets

Machinery 
and 

equipment

Biological 
assets

Total

Number of R1 minor assets

Number of minor  assets 
at cost

- - - 4 778 - 4 778

TOTAL NO OF MINOR 
ASSETS

- - -          4 778 -          4 778

27.4.1	 Prior period error
Note 2015/16

R’000
Nature of prior period error
Relating to 2015/16 [affecting the opening balance]

Machinery and Equipment 25

Relating to 2014/15

Total prior period errors 25

Machinery and Equipment was understated in the prior year
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27.4.2     Movable assets written off

MOVABLE ASSETS WRITTEN OFF FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2016
Specialised 

military 
assets

Intangible 
assets

Heritage 
assets

Machinery 
and 

equipment

Biological 
assets

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Assets written off - - - 995 - 995
TOTAL MOVABLE 
ASSETS WRITTEN OFF

- - - 995 - 995

28.          Intangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 
2016

Opening 
balance

Value 
adjustments

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
SOFTWARE 110 - 5 261 - 5 371
TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 110 - 5 261 - 5 371

28.1	 Additions

ADDITIONS TO INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 
2016

Cash Non-Cash (Develop-
ment work 
in progress 

– current 
costs)

Received 
current year, not 

paid

(Paid current 
year, received 

prior year)

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

SOFTWARE 5 261 - - - 5 261

TOTAL ADDITIONS TO INTANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS

5 261 - - - 5 261
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28.2      Movement for 2014/15

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 
2015

Opening 
balance

Prior 
period 
error

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

SOFTWARE 110 - - - 110
TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 110 - - - 110

29.   Prior period errors

Note 2015/16

R’000
Expenditure: 
Transfers and Subsidies 

Higher Education Institutions (6 646)

House Holds  6 646

Net effect -

Bursaries for non-employees was erroneously included under higher Education Institution in the prior year instead 
of Households

Note 2015/16

R’000
Assets: 
Movable Tangible Asset  (105)

Minor Assets 25

Net effect (80)

Movable tangible asset was overstated by R105 000 because of an error in the prior period between the Asset 
Register and the AFS.

Minor asset were understated by R25 000 because of an error in the prior period between the Asset register and 
the AFS.
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Note 2015/16

R’000
Liabilities: - (691)

Voted funds to be surrendered
Net effect - (691)
Voted funds to be surrendered in the previous year was overstated by R691 000 as a 
result of miscalculations in the trial balance.

Note 2015/16

R’000
Disclosure (Annexure)  
Contingent Liabilities (294) 

Net effect (294)

The prior year closing balance for Contingent liabilities was overstated by 294 because of prior payment that was 
not recognised.
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ANNEXURE 1B

STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS TO DEPARTMENTAL AGENCIES AND ACCOUNTS

DEPARTMENT/ 
AGENCY/ 
ACCOUNT

TRANSFER ALLOCATION TRANSFER 2014/15

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Roll 
Overs Adjustments

Total 
Available

Actual 
Transfer

% of 
Available 
funds 
Transferred

Appropriation 
Act

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000
Transfers - - - - - - -
Skills 
Development 
Levy

- - - - - - 378

Department 
of Safety and 
Security

13 - - 13 13 100% 10

TOTAL 13 - - 13 13 - 388
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ANNEXURE 1G

STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS TO HOUSEHOLDS

 
HOUSEHOLDS

TRANSFER ALLOCATION EXPENDITURE 2014/15

Adjusted 
Appropriation 
Act

Roll 
Overs Adjustments

Total 
Available

Actual 
Transfer

% of 
Available 
funds 
Transferred

Appropriation 
Act

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000
Transfers
Injury on duty 20 - - 20 19 95% 23
Leave Gratuity 3 506 - - 3 506 3 487 99% 1 346
Gifts and 
donations-Bags

- - - - - - 113

Bursaries-Non 
Employees

7 863 - 7 863 7 863 100% 6 005

TOTAL 11 389 - - 11 389 11 369 - 7 487
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ANNEXURE 1H

STATEMENT OF GIFTS, DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS RECEIVED

NAME OF ORGANISATION
NATURE OF GIFT, DONATION OR 
SPONSORSHIP

2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000

Received in cash
Standard Bank (SMS SUMMIT) - 25
Various Donors 691
Subtotal - 25
TOTAL 691 25
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ANNEXURE 1J

STATEMENT OF GIFTS, DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS MADE 

NATURE OF GIFT, DONATION OR SPONSORSHIP

(Group major categories but list material items including name of 
organisation

2015/16 2014/15

R’000 R’000

Made in kind
Bags - 113

TOTAL - 113
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ANNEXURE 3B STATEMENT OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

Nature of Liability

Opening 
Balance 

Liabilities 
incurred 

during the 
year

Liabilities 
paid/

cancelled/
reduced 

during the 
year

Liabilities 
recoverable 

(Provide 
details 

hereunder)

Closing 
Balance

1 April 2015
31 March 

2016
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Claims against the department      

Standard Bank 2 111 - - 2 111
Sithole Computers  2 595 - - - 2 595
Imvuno Trading 470 - - - 470
Valozone 268 cc 67 - 67 - -
Markohill Media 22 - - - 22
Riena Charles 12 353 - - - 12 353
TOTAL 17 618 - 67 - 17 551

Prior year figure for Standard Bank was overstated by R389 000

Prior year figure for Sithole Computers was understated by R95 000



ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2015/2016 FINANCIAL YEAR VOTE 1:  OFFICE OF THE PREMIER MPUMALANGA PROVINCE 

232

(MP: OFFICE OF THE PREMIER) 
VOTE 1  

ANNEXURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
for the year ended 31 March 2016

ANNEXURE 4

CLAIMS RECOVERABLE

Government Entity

Confirmed 
balance 

outstanding

Unconfirmed 
balance 

outstanding Total

Cash in transit at 
year end 2015/16 

31/03/2016

31/03/2015

31/03/2016

31/03/2015

31/03/2016

31/03/2015

Receipt date 
up to six (6) 

working days 
after year 

end

A
m

ount

R
’000

R
’000

R
’000

R
’000

R
’000

R
’000

R
’000

Department
 Department of agriculture , Rural 
Development and Land Administration

- - - 106 - 106 - -

 Department of Sports Arts and Culture - - - 209 - 209 - -
 Department of Cooperative Governance 
and Traditional Affairs

- - - 15 - 15 - -

 Department of Health 274 - - - 274 - - -
Department of Public Works and Transport 4 - - - 4 - - -
Department of Economic Development 48 - - - 48 - - -
TOTAL 326 - - 330 326 330 - -
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ANNEXURE 5

INTER-GOVERNMENT PAYABLES

GOVERNMENT ENTITY

Confirmed 
balance 

outstanding

Unconfirmed 
balance 

outstanding TOTAL

Cash in transit at year 
end 2015/16 *

31/03/2016

31/03/2015

31/03/2016

31/03/2015

31/03/2016

31/03/2015

Payment date 
up to six (6) 

working days 
before year end

A
m

ount

R
’000

R
’000

R
’000

R
’000

R
’000

R
’000

R
’000

DEPARTMENTS
Current
 Department of Justice and 
Constitutional Development

- 16 193 191 193 207 - -

 Department of Education 73 418 - 171 73 589 - -
 National Department of Health - 12 - 86 - 98 - -
TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 73 446 193 448 266 894 - -
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